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Audited results for

the year ended 30 April
BENA=+HIFEEZ

B 1% K A
2017 2016 Changes
—ZF— L e AN 55 )
Turnover (HK$°000) WER (FHTL) 280,719 287,021 (6,302)
Loss for the year (HK$000) AR R (F#L) (55,150) (10,991) (44,159)
Loss per share (HK cent) g 18 (Al ) (2.44) (2.99) 0.55
Adjusted EBITA/LBITDA (HK$000) %1% EBITA/LBITDA
(Note 1) (Fi#or) (Matl) 43 (24,110) 24,153
(Audited) (Audited)
At 30 April At 30 April
2017 2016
(5 1%) (8% )
/AR S o U S S AN D Changes
WWH=+H WH=+H B
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 2) EARBEL R (Ki2) 5.0% 5.2% 0.2)%

Notes :

1. Adjusted loss before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(“Adjusted EBITDA/LBITDA”) is computed as loss before tax
plus depreciation, finance costs, impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment, net fair value loss on derivative financial
instrument and net fair value (loss)/gain on financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss.

2. Gearing ratio is defined as total debts, including bank and other
borrowings and obligations under finance leases over shareholders’
equity.
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GEOGRAPHICAL TURNOVER ANALYSIS
i[85 7 SR

Geographical Turnover Analysis for the Years ended 30 April 2017 and 2016
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TURNOVER ANALYSIS BY PERCENTAGE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
A

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”),
I hereby present the results of QPL International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 30 April 2017.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the fiscal year under review, the Group reported a turnover
of HKS$280.72 million, representing a slightly decrease of 2.2%
as compared with HK$287.02 million for the previous year. The
Group’s consolidated loss for the year amounted to HK$55.15
million as compared with a consolidated loss of HK$10.99 million
for the previous year. Basic loss per share was HK2.44 cents (2016:
loss per share of HK2.99 cents). Recurring EBITDA, computed
as loss before tax excluding depreciation, finance costs and net
fair value loss on financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss, amounted to a EBITDA of HK$43,000 (2016: Recurring
LBITDA, computed as loss before tax excluding depreciation,
financial costs, net fair value gain on financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss, net fair value loss on derivative financial
instrument and impairment loss on property, plant and equipment,
amounted to HK$24.11 million).

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year (2016: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group’s business maintained
stable and the Group recorded a slightly decrease in turnover of 2.2%
to HK$280.72 million (2016: HK$287.02 million) during the year.

During the year, staff costs decreased by 13.0% to HK$82.09
million (2016: HK$94.40 million) representing 29.2% of the
Group’s turnover. Other expenses decreased by 17.4% to
HK$76.01 million (2016: HK$92.01 million) representing 27.1% of
the Group’s turnover during the year. The Group will continue to
monitor the market and consequently adjust its labour force and
labour structure in order to achieve a better staff mix to enhance
labour efficiency. The Group will also continuously tighten its
expenditure in its efforts to minimise the impact of increasing
factory operating costs.
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QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BV 8

The financial results of the Group were affected by net fair value
loss on financial asset at FVTPL of approximately HK$59.38
million (2016: net fair value gain of HK$52.03 million) during
the year under review. The net fair value loss on financial
asset at FVTPL mainly comprised of the fair value loss on
investment in (i) listed equity securities of Lerado Financial
Group Company Limited (approximately HK$10.70 million),
Major Holdings Limited (approximately HK$16.34 million) and
L & A International Holdings Limited (approximately HK$8.97
million) and (ii) unlisted equity securities of Henghua Global New
Opportunity Fund SP (approximately HK$9.63 million).

PROSPECTS

In order to improve the Group’s operational performance, the
Group will continue to implement plans to increase its production
efficiency and capacity. In order to improve the Group’s
competitiveness and fulfill different production requirements,
the Group will undertake various actions to develop its existing
manufacturing business, in particular, (i) installing more advanced
environmental protection facilities at the existing factory to fulfill
the regulatory framework from the Ministry of the Environmental
Protection of the PRC, (ii) acquiring various raw materials such
as chemicals, copper and silver, as inventories for the manufacture
of integrated circuit lead-frames, heatsinks, stiffeners and related
products, (iii) expanding its production sites by acquiring or/
and leasing new factory and land in the PRC, and (iv) acquiring
machinery and equipment which constitute the part of the
manufacturing process, and replenishing the factories and
premises.

The Group will continue to strengthen its engineering and
production departments in order to maintain its competitive edges
for short lead times and high production planning flexibility.
These competitive edges will enable the Group to serve its
customers better and should expand the Group’s market share.

In addition, the Group will continue to explore other business
opportunities with a view to expanding its principal manufacturing
business and generating improved returns to our shareholders.

P FUAE R AR 25 2 A RVE R 8] R AT A Bk
55 (8 s 18 % 4759,380,0009 70 ( —~FE — N
AN AR AE W AR TR #ES2,030,0009 06) o A E 2
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Tl 2 N A0 s 1RV R T LA () B R B K
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B [ P A PR 7l 2 b i TR A 5 5 s 8 00 I &9
10,700,000 7T ~ 16,340,000 JC ~ 8,970,000 7T
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
B

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM OPEN OFFER
AND PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER A

SPECIFIC MANDATE

The Company raised net proceeds of approximately HK$636.83
million (the “Total Proceeds”) by way of an open offer to issue
1,151,054,435 offer shares on 6 April 2016 and a placing of
875,000,000 new shares on 7 April 2016 (the “Fundraising”). The
Company originally intended to apply the Total Proceeds for
expanding the principal business of the Company by acquisition
of land for the construction of a new factory, purchase of new
machinery for the new factory and construction of a new factory (the
“Initial Expansion Plan™).

Having considered the delay in acquisition of land, on
14 September 2016, the Company changed the use of part of the
Total Proceeds of approximately HK$226.83 million to future
possible short-term investment opportunities as identified by the
Company and then applied it for acquisition of Hong Kong listed
equities and subscription of an investment fund (the “Securities
Investment™). The Company attempted to explore land located
in Guangdong province or other places in the Southern China
after September 2016 but still no concrete terms were established
nor had any legal binding agreements been reached with any
potential vendors of land for the construction of new factory. The
Board was of the views that the expansion plan by building a new
factory to replace its existing factory could not be implemented as
intended and terminated the Initial Expansion Plan. On 29 March
2017, the Board changed the proposed use of the remaining part
of the Total Proceed to as to i) approximately HK$200 million for
making loan facility to a licensed money lender to earn interest
income to the Company (“Provision of Loan Facility”), and, as to
ii) approximately HK$210 million for expanding its manufacture
and sale of integrated circuit lead-frames, heatsinks, stiffeners
and related products, and/or for general working capital, and/or
for future possible investment opportunities in relation to the
principal business of the Company.
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QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BV 8

As at 30 April 2017, HK$226.83 million of the Total Proceed
were utilized for Securities Investment, HK$80 million of the
Total Proceed were utilized for Provision of Loan Facility,
approximately HK$10 million of the Total Proceed were utilized
for the principal business and the remaining approximately
HK$320 million were placed with banks and securities houses.

After the year ended 30 April 2017, the Company changed the use
of the Total Proceeds (the “Change”). Details of the Changes are
disclosed in the “Cash Company concern” section of this Annual
Report.

CASH COMPANY CONCERN

On 12 May 2017, the Company received a letter from The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
that it appears to the Stock Exchange that: i) the scale of the
Fundraising was large and had a material dilution impact
to the then shareholders; ii) the Company’s assets have been
consisted substantially of cash and cash equivalent since after the
Fundraising; iii) Both the Securities Investment and the Provision
of Loan Facility (the “New Businesses”) is/would be greenfield
operations of new business of the Company; and iv) it is likely
that the New Businesses would be larger than the Company’s
existing manufacturing business. The Stock Exchange was minded
to determine the Company has become a cash company and
trading in its securities will be suspended under Rule 14.82 of the
Listing Rules.

It is the Company’s intention to take appropriate actions
to warrant its listing status. On 19 May 2017, the Company
terminated the Provision of Loan Facility and proposed to
make a distribution of approximately HK$300 million to the
Shareholders (the “Distribution”) as a reward for their continuing
support, and undertook various actions to develop its existing
manufacturing business of approximately HK$272 million
(the “Immediate Expansion Plans”). The Distribution and the
Immediate Expansion Plans could be funded through the cash
available after the termination of the Provision of Loan Facility
and by liquidating the Securities Investments, if necessary. The
Company expects upon the implementation of the above plans
should eliminate the Stock Exchange’s concern that the Company
will became a cash company.

WO E—EAENA=Z+H A F S ERIE P
226,830,000 70 H it 78 75 4% & > H 180,000,000
5 0 R B2 I R > £910,000,000%5 o6 F A
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B o
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
B

The Distribution is conditional upon, inter alia, the passing of a
special resolution by the shareholders of the Company to approve
the reduction of share premium at the special general meeting
held on 14 July 2017. Since the special resolution to approve the
reduction of share premium was not passed and the condition of
the Distribution was not fulfilled, no Distribution will be made
accordingly.

On 15 July 2017, the Company resolved to change approximately
HKS$120 million from the proceed of the Distribution for the
acquisition of two properties as office premises for the reasons of
coping with its future expansion of the Group’s business and also
resolving the cash company issue.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS WEHYE
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Fair value percentage to
gain(loss) Number of the total asset
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GreaterChina Professional Services Limited %% BT 4 R/A
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BV 8

GPS, LW, MH, CJ and CIF are listed on the Stock Exchange.
The major activities of GPS are provision of asset advisory
services and asset appraisal, corporate services and consultancy,
media advertising and financial services in Hong Kong. The
major activities of LW are provision of civil engineering works
and investment holding. The major activities of MH are the sale
and distribution of premium wine and spirits products and wine
accessory products in Hong Kong. The major activities of CJ are
manufacturing and sale of POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas
and umbrella parts such as plastic cloth and shaft to its customers.
The major activities of CIF are securities trading and investment
holding. The Fund is managed by Henghua Global Fund SPC, an
exempted company incorporated with limited liability under the
laws of the Cayman Islands. The investment objective of the Fund
is to generate income and/or achieve capital appreciation through
investing in a variety of the investments.

After the year ended 30 April 2017 and up to the date of this
Annual Report, the Group disposed 80.80 million shares of
GPS, all its investment in MH, LW, CJ and two other listed
equity securities on the open market and resulted in fair value
loss on financial asset at FVTPL with an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$119.44 million, which will be charged to the
profit or loss of the Group for the year ending 30 April 2018.

The Directors considered that the future prospects of the
significant investments may be affected by external market
conditions, and will continue to monitor and assess the Group’s
investment.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
The Group’s bank balances and cash amounted to HK$322.76
million (2016: HK$641.67 million). The Group also deposited
HK$4.28 million (2016: HK$8.82 million) into its securities house
account as at 30 April 2017. To finance its working capital, the
Group has incurred total outstanding debts of HK$34.69 million
as at 30 April 2017 (2016: HK$38.55 million), which comprised
HK$1.46 million (2016: HKS$1.25 million) of obligations under
finance leases, HK$33.16 million (2016: HK$37.23 million)
of collateralised bank borrowings, and HKS$75,000 (2016:
HK$75,000) amount due to a director. In terms of interest costs,
included in the outstanding debts, HK$34.62 million (2016:
HK$38.48 million) was interest bearing and HK$75,000 (2016:
HK$75,000) was interest free.
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The gearing ratio was 5.0% as at 30 April 2017 (2016: 5.2%).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s transactions and monetary assets are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi.
The fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year ended
30 April 2017 did not adversely affect the Group’s operations or
liquidity.

During the year under review, no foreign exchange contract was
entered into by the Group. The Group had a foreign exchange
contracts to manage the currency exchange risk of Renminbi
against US dollars which has been fully matured in October 2015.
This foreign exchange contract was entered into to hedge against
the Group’s exposure to currency fluctuations and it is the policy
of the Group not to enter into any derivative contracts purely for
speculative activities. Net fair value loss on derivative financial
instrument was HK$0.15 million for the year ended 30 April 2016.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 April 2017, trade receivables with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$41.60 million (2016: HK$48.65 million) were
pledged to secure bank borrowings granted to the Group and
motor vehicles with a carrying amount of approximately HK$1.62
million (2016: HK$1.40 million) were assets held under finance
leases.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Group invested
HK$12.31 million (2016: HK$12.20 million) in acquiring property,
plant and equipment. This capital expenditure was financed
mainly from internal financial resources.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 30 April 2017, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 1,130 (2016: 1,175). The Group maintains
its emolument policy to ensure that employee remuneration is
commensurate with job nature, qualifications and experience. The
Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages,
share options and other benefits to eligible staff, based on the
performance of the Group and of individual employees.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity
to express my gratitude to my fellow Directors and all staff for
their efforts and contribution. Besides, I also would like to offer
my sincere appreciation to all customers, business partners and
Shareholders for their continuing support.

By Order of the Board

Li Tung Lok
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 31 July 2017
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

w3 i

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Tung Lok, aged 65, is the founder of the Group. Mr. Li has
been an Executive Director and Executive Chairman of the Board
since January 1989. Mr. Li has also served as the Chief Executive
of the Company since January 1989 (except for the period from
February 2004 to December 2008). He is also a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible
for the Group’s corporate strategic planning, overall management,
business and product development. He has a B. Sc. Degree in
Chemical Engineering and over 40 years of experience in servicing
the semiconductor industry.

Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick, aged 47, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since December 2008. He is responsible
for the Group’s overall sales, services and supplies management.
Mr. Phen obtained his bachelor’s degree in Engineering from
Loughborough University of Technology, Loughborough, United
Kingdom. He has over 23 years of experience in semiconductor
sales, services and supplies management through his previous
employment with different companies in Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the Group in 2001, Mr. Phen had worked as a customer
services engineer and then a deputy director, account management
of ASAT Limited, a subsidiary of ASAT Holdings Limited, which
was an associated company of the Group during 1991 to 1996,
and then from 1996 to 2001 was a sales director at SMI Limited,
a subsidiary of SDI Corporation, a company incorporated in
Taiwan and listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

Ms. Tung Siu Ching, aged 63, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since 18 June 2015. Ms. Tung engaged
in import and export industry for more than 25 years. She held
management positions in several trading companies and was
responsible for regional marketing strategy and internal staff
training. Ms. Tung has extensive knowledge in corporate operation
management and in marketing in the PRC and Europe.
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Mr. Wong Ka Lok Andrew, aged 40, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since 5 October 2016. He is a
registered psychologist of the Hong Kong Psychological Society
and a member of both the British Psychological Society and the
Hong Kong Psychological Society. Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor
degree in Psychology from University of London and a Master
degree in Occupational Psychology from London Metropolitan
University. Mr. Wong has over 15 years of consultancy experience
in project management and human resource management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

Mr. Yau Chi Hang, aged 42, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 18 June 2015. He is
also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Yau has over 15 years of experience in
electronic industry. He held management positions in a Japanese
based company which delivers electronic components, such as
integrated circuits products and transistors, in Hong Kong and
in the PRC for over 10 years and was responsible for formulating
and executing marketing strategy for the company. Mr. Yau holds
a Master of Science degree and a Bachelor of Science degree in
Chemistry from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chu Chun On Franco, aged 34, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
15 September 2016. He is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is a Certified Financial Planner registered with
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong and hold a
Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting and Finance
from Simon Fraser University in Canada. He is a licensed person
to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities) and type 4 (advising on
securities) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”).
He has over 10 years of experience in financial planning and
wealth management and is currently an account representative of
Centaline Securities Limited and the sales director of Centaline
Wealth Management Limited.

Ms. Chung Hoi Yan, aged 35, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
15 November 2016. She is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee and a member of each
of the Remuneration Committee. She is a qualified member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and hold a
Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting from the City
University of Hong Kong. She has over 10 years of experience in
the auditing and the finance and accounting field. She is currently
an assistant finance manager of company of which is listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

WRERAE  BF408 A -F - RFETHRLA
EBHEARANFANTEE - HAFELEETL
ERIRRSLE P& E AT RN R RS E S IR R
ZER-wiERFFAMBKRLHER BN
T Ay 20 € R B 2 W 3 0 B R AR BB AV o BT
A AT SR T H R B RN ) IR PR R

KBy o

18 3 I AT HE

W& AT SE A BUARA2RE - A —F —RAEARHA A
HEBEEBARNFBIL AT ESE WA
AAFAZHMEBG LR ULFZZ B G MR
HERGAZ A o B A RS540
TAT S KE B o G AE — B B AR 2 R I AT B
(i B 104F > 5% 2% Rl 2 S5 7y 1 7 vl S o o R g
T IO > U0 AR AR B A B R T B SR
IR BT 6% 0 A E A0 AT T 3 R R S
B 5 A A A A s R B PR B PR ER L

BB LB

RIgEMRAE 3B H - F—NENLA T HBER
WAEARLF B FAITEF - LHFELEZER
T VM EEG ML ZEERAME AR
i T s SR BB i 2 R R bR O 5 A
ERWRFED KB GG LM e HE 8
B o 45 2% AT AT 7 HE UA B SR 5T 1 B O B 1 R fhe
ol ([ 7 R B hefl]) T B (BHELH)
B A (R R I R 2 RE S B 2
N o (B A A B R % B AR
BoBAPEEFARARZEFARKF R
B A PR ) B A

HEYLR Lk BUEISH A - F—RNET—A
TR A RBAEAR RN A B MATEE B R
FEREZEGLRAZEGERAFMEL X
HWE AT EEMAg L aEREE I
FrA BT RE2EB 2 THEHEEL (&)
B o JCHRA IR 104F MO T T > B S wh AR
T BAEAS A 7] (FE B 22 B E AR 7)) 2 B 2R 5
KEHL o



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 43

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o Y

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to building and maintaining best
practice standards of corporate governance. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise a quality Board,
effective internal controls, stringent disclosure practices and
transparency, independence and accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has adopted its own Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “QPL Code”) incorporating the
principles and code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. A copy of the QPL
Code is posted on the Company’s website (www.qpl.com).

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all code provisions set out in
the CG Code except for the deviations explained in the relevant
paragraphs below.

THE BOARD

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. Responsibilities of the Board include but are not limited
to the formulation of the Group’s strategy and policies, setting of
corporate and management targets and key operational initiatives,
monitoring and control of operational and financial performance,
and approval of major capital expenditures, major investments,
material acquisitions and disposal of assets, corporate or
financial restructuring and significant operational financial and
management matters.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management and operations
of the Group’s businesses to the executive management under
the supervision of the chief executive of the Company (“Chief
Executive”). The division of responsibilities between the Board
and the management is set out in the QPL Code.

Three Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, have
also been established to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s
affairs. Details of these three committees are set out in the
relevant paragraphs below.
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The Company has established a policy enabling the Directors to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense. The Board will provide separate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist them to
discharge their duties to the Company.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed
from time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced
composition of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the businesses of the Group, and that the balance
between executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors is sufficient to provide adequate checks for safeguarding
the interests of the Shareholders and to enable the Board to
exercise independent judgment.

As at 30 April 2017, the Board comprised eight Directors,
including four executive Directors, one of whom is the founder of
the Group, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board and the Board committees, and the
individual attendance records of each Director at the Board and
Board committees’ meetings during the year are set out below:
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Note:

1. Mr. Wong Ka Lok Andrew was appointed as an executive Director
on 5 October 2016.

2. Mr. Chu Chun On Franco and Ms. Chung Hoi Yan were appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 15 September 2016
and 15 November 2016 respectively.

3. Mr. Wong Wai Man was resigned on 30 June 2017.

4. Mr. How Sze Ming and Mr. Lee Kwok Wan were retired on

8 September 2016.

Code provision A.6.7 and E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the
Chairman of the Board should attend the annual general meeting
of the Company and non-executive Director should attend general
meetings of the Company.

Owing to other business engagements, the Chairman of the Board,
Mr. Li Tung Lok and two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. How Sze Ming and Mr. Lee Kwok Wan were unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 September
2016 and an independent non-executive Director, Ms. Chung Hoi
Yan, was unable to attend the general meeting of the Company
held on 9 December 2016.

The Directors have extensive industry knowledge and experience
in corporate management, strategic planning, legal, accounting
and financial matters. Of the eight Directors, one non-executive
Director and one independent non-executive Directors are
qualified accountants.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors” section on pages 17 to 18 of this Annual
Report. The information is also available on the Company’s
website. In addition, a list containing the names of the Directors
and their roles and functions is posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board has complied with the Listing Rules in having at
least three independent non-executive Directors (representing
at least one-third of the Board) with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Board has assessed the independence of all of the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company and considers all of them
to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation
on independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;
(i1) the absence of involvement in the daily management of the
Company; and (iii) the absence of any financial, business or family
or other material/relevant relationships between the members of
the Board or circumstances which would interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgment.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES” MEETINGS
In addition to the Board meetings, the Chairman holds at least
two meetings with the independent non-executive Directors
annually without the presence of the executive Director.

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc
basis. The bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) allow Board
meetings to be conducted by means of a conference telephone or
similar communications equipment by means of which all persons
participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each other.
Also, a resolution in writing signed by each of the Directors for
the time being in the relevant territories shall, provided such
Directors would constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Board
convened to consider the resolution, be valid and effectual.

At least 14 days’ notice for regular Board and Board committees’
meetings and reasonable notice for non-regular Board and
Board committees’ meetings are given to all Directors/committee
members so as to ensure that each of them had an opportunity
to attend the meetings. The company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman of the Board
and Board committees in preparing the agenda for meetings and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with.
The agenda and the accompanying meeting papers are sent in full
to all Directors/committee members at least 3 days before the date
of meetings.

After the Board and Board committees’ meeting, draft minutes are
circulated to all Directors/committees members for their comment
before execution and approval. All minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary and available for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice given by the Directors/committee
members.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Li Tung Lok has been the Chairman of the Board since the
establishment of the Company in January 1989. Mr. Li has also
served as the Chief Executive since January 1989 (except for
the period from February 2004 to December 2008). Being the
founder of the Group, Mr. Li’s industry expertise and detailed
understanding of the Company’s operations is highly regarded by
the Company. Accordingly, vesting the roles of Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive in Mr. Li adds significant value to the
Company’s business growth while enhancing the efficiency of the
decision-making process in response to the changing environment.
Given all major decisions are reserved to the Board and three out
of eight Board members are independent non-executive Directors,
the Company considers that there is an adequate balance of power
and authority in place between the Board and the management of
the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of
not more than three years, subject to retirement and re-election
pursuant to the Bye-laws.

APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT AND
RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Bye-laws, half of the Directors (excluding Director(s)
holding office as executive chairman and/or managing director,
who is/are, by virtue of Bermuda law, exempted from retirement
by rotation) shall retire from office at each annual general meeting
of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election. As the
executive Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok is not subject
to retirement by rotation. In order to comply with Code Provision A.4.2,
Mr. Li Tung Lok has agreed to voluntarily retire and be re-elected
at least once every three years. At the 2015 annual general meeting
of the Company held on 15 September 2015, Mr. Li Tung Lok
retired from office and was re-elected as an executive Director.
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The Company currently does not have a Director holding office as
its managing director.

A retiring Director is eligible for re-election and the re-election
of retiring Directors at general meetings is dealt with by
separate individual resolutions. Where vacancies arise at the
Board, candidates are proposed and put forward to the Board
for consideration and approval. The Shareholders may propose
a candidate for election as a Director in accordance with the
Bye-laws. The procedures for such proposal are posted on the
website of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

The Board was informed of updates of current Listing Rules,
accounting practices and disclosure requirements as and when
necessary.

The Directors understand the need to continue to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills for making contributions to
the Company. During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Directors
attended external seminars and read materials on topics relevant
to their duties as Directors. The Directors have been required to
provide the Company with their training records on an annual
basis, and such records are maintained by the Company Secretary.
In addition, the Directors also disclose to the Company their
interests as directors or other offices in other public companies
in a timely manner and update the Company on any subsequent
changes.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for dealings in
the securities of the Company by Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year under review.

A4 T BB Sl 0 o £ 3 AT 0 2 o

BEFEFSEREEEML MBEERLE
7 AT JH P IR RO B b DI S {1 ol R 5% B B o
MERFHBER T ERGERILRE DS
N 938 3 FG 25 R D A O o 4 BR A WA B > BBESRET
HHRANEUMER S EE - ERNR BT TR
AR 2w A Bl o

Ee |
R S A BUAT BRI &
B B RE 2 R B o

4 W] A R AR AR B 2 ek M A
e DIBARNAEHER - REE LN
H=+H L4 E  #E KLU ERRE R W
(9 0B F f B B B BE A B % B B R
A AN TRV AR s hR A
BB TR AT o LA > S S5 1 8 IR 18] A 23 ] 95 8 O
ST HoAth B T2 R AT SRS 2 A ik
Sl 1) A 2 ) 4 AT o A4 B Bl 2 moh R

MEAT % 2 S Z B HE AT I

G OB LT B SR 10RT K B EE AT A
R EAT A IR A by B AR R ST R (TR e A )
ERERABEARFE I Z T AL FE
HAMAMNR SREFIYC MR P50 E
A B — A T A < A S ) BT B U
AREFERLZ S 247 AR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e SR a

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that the Board procedures are followed and the Board activities are
efficiently and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved
through adherence to proper Board procedures and the timely
preparation and dissemination of meeting agendas and papers
to the Directors. Minutes of all Board and Board committees’
meetings are prepared and maintained by the Company Secretary
to record in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached by the Board or Board committees. All draft and final
minutes of Board and Board committees’ meetings are sent to the
Directors and committee members respectively for comments and
are available for inspection by any Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and that it takes
these into consideration when making decisions for the Group.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the
Group’s compliance with all obligations under the Listing Rules
and The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
including the preparation, publication and despatch of annual
reports and interim reports within the time limits laid down in
the Listing Rules and the timely dissemination of the same to the
Shareholders.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings in the
Group’s securities, connected transactions and inside information
and ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are complied and, where required, reported in the
annual report of the Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. All
members of the Board have access to the advice and service of
the Company Secretary. Mr. Wong Wai Man was the Company
Secretary of the Company from 30 April 2015 to 21 July 2017 and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. The Company
Secretary confirmed that he has complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements of the Listing
Rules.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The annual and interim results of the Group are published in a
timely manner, within three months and two months respectively
of the year end and the half year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting
records are kept so that the financial statements can be prepared
in accordance with the appropriate accounting policies, applicable
accounting standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
under review, the Directors have:

- selected suitable accounting policies and applied them on a
consistent basis;

- made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable; and

- ensure that they are prepared on a going concern basis.

Senior management of the Company has provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
business activities and development of the Group in sufficient
detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

The statement of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“DTT”), regarding their reporting responsibility is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 60 to 66 of this
Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in April 2000 pursuant to
the then Code of Best Practice of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Audit Committee
has consisted of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Ms. Chung Hoi Yan (being the Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Chu Chun On Franco and Mr. Yau Chi Hang.
Ms. Chung Hoi Yan is a qualified accountant with extensive
experience in accounting, audit and financial matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
those set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange and also available from the Company Secretary
on request.
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee include:

- overseeing the relationship between the Group and its
external auditor;

- reviewing the appointment of the external auditor to ensure
continuing auditor’s independence;

- reviewing the Group’s preliminary results, interim results
and annual financial statements;

- monitor the corporate governance of the Group including
compliance with statutory and the Listing Rules
requirements; and

- assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by
providing an independent review and supervision of the
Group’s financial reporting system, and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The annual report for the year ended 30 April 2017 has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the year under review, work performed by the Audit
Committee include:

- Meeting with the Chief Executive and senior management
of the Company from time to time to review the interim
and final results, the interim report and annual report and
other financial, internal control, corporate governance
and risk management matters of the Group and making
recommendations to the Board;

- Considering and discussing the annual and interim reports
with a view to ensuring that the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards;

= Meeting with the external auditor, DTT, to consider
the reports of DTT on the scope, strategy, progress
and outcome of its independent annual audit of the
consolidated financial statements, discuss its annual audit
of the consolidated financial statements (in each case
without the Company’s management being present); and

- Assisting the Board in meeting its responsibilities for
maintaining an effective system of internal control.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year the engagement letter from the
external auditor confirming their independence and objectivity
and holds meetings with representatives of the external auditor to
consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it.
The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and retention of the external auditor.

The Group’s policy regarding the engagement of DTT for the
various services listed below is as follows:

- Audit services — include audit services provided in
connection with the audit of the consolidated financial
statements. All such services are to be provided by the

external auditor.

- Non-audit services — include services that would normally
be provided by an external auditor but not generally
included in audit services, for example, acting as reporting
accountants for the Company’s circular in relation to a
major transaction.

- Taxation related services — include all tax compliance and
tax planning services.

For the year ended 30 April 2017, a remuneration of HKS$1.18
million was paid and payable to DTT for the provision of audit
services and HK$0.4 million was paid and payable to DTT for the
provision of non-audit services to the Group.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in January 2006. As
at the date of this Annual Report, the Remuneration Committee
has consisted of one executive Director, namely Mr. Li Tung Lok,
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yau
Chi Hang (being the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee),
Mr. Chu Chun On Franco and Ms. Chung Hoi Yan.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
consistent with those set out in the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and also
available from the Company Secretary on request.
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The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include:

- making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration;

- reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors.

During the year under review, work performed by the
Remuneration Committee included:

- determining the remuneration package of newly appointed
Directors and making recommendation to the Board for
approval;

- reviewing and fixing the remuneration of executive

Directors and senior management; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the independent non-executive Directors.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The fees of the Directors and emolument of senior management
are determined with reference to their respective duties and
responsibilities, expertise and experience in the industry,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
remuneration benchmarks from other companies and prevailing
market conditions. Whilst the Board retains its power to determine
the remuneration of non-executive Directors, the responsibility
for reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management of the
Company is delegated to the Remuneration Committee.
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2017 REMUNERATION R LA

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to the Directors from  #H HMM S @A FEAR LA A LK HEFEA A LA TEH
the Company and its Group companies. The amounts paid toeach ZHIH-HE _F—LHFEWH =+ HILFFEZ
Director for the year ended 30 April 2017 are as below: RENESS =%l (Il N

Other emoluments

H A&

Salaries Retirement
and Other Benefit Total
Name of Directors Fees Benefits Schemes Emoluments

Hak B ok
HREA kS H A g Al it 3 i 4 48 %
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
F# Tt T F#x
Li Tung Lok 7 [ 4 122 = = 122
Phen Hoi Ping Patrick A = 1,485 74 1,559
Tung Siu Ching EN = 144 7 151
Wong Ka Lok Andrew (Note /) HRE (M) 137 = = 137
Yau Chi Hang 1T 100 = = 100
Chu Chun On Franco (Note 1) RIGHE (Bl 75 = = 75
Chung Hoi Yan (Note 1) S (ML) 66 = = 66
How Sze Ming (Note 2) W (Hfi2) 90 = = 90
Lee Kwok Wan (Note 2) S E (Mfi#2) 90 = = 90
Wong Wai Man (Note 3) HE(M3) 180 = = 180
Total B 860 1,629 81 2,570

The remuneration paid to the members of senior management by — # % =& — L4EVN A = H 1E4F B i 4 51

bands for the year ended 30 April 2017 is set out below: J& 1 B S AN 2 I A A ) 4y 2 BRI T

Remuneration Bands Number of Employees

i T AL [ 1-PN

HK $nil — HK$1,000,000 ZHE T - 1,000,000% 7T 1

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 — 1,500,000% 7 2

Notes: Bt -

1. Mr. Wong Ka Lok Andrew, Mr. Chu Chun On Franco and 1. R SRS  RIR e A RS LR A IR
Ms. Chung Hoi Yan were appointed on 5 October 2016, 15 ZE-ARNETHAB - ZF-ANEIHTHA
September 2016 and 15 November 2016 respectively. K ZFE—NEF—H+HHERMT-

2. Mr. How Sze Ming and Mr. Lee Kwok Wan were retired on 2. BB REB ERER ZFE—NEILA
8 September 2016. JUHRAE ©

3. Mr. Wong Wai Man was resigned on 30 June 2017. 3. WAREAN R —LEANH =T HEHE
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BOARD NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in January 2006. As
at the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination Committee has
consisted of three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Ms. Chung Hoi Yan (being the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Chu Chun On Franco and Mr. Yau Chi Hang.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been reviewed and revised with reference to the CG Code. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and also
available from the Company Secretary on request.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include:

- reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

- identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the candidates nominated for directorships;

- assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular, the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive.

During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included:

- identifying candidates suitably qualified to be appointed as
independent non-executive directors of the Company and
assessing their independence pursuant to the requirement
under the Listing Rules;

- approving for nomination of candidates as independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendation to
the Board for approval of appointment; and

- reviewing the annual confirmation of independence
submitted by the independent non-executive Directors and
assessing their independence.
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BOARD DIVERSITY

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed its practices
on Board diversity, formalised and adopted a policy by the Board
which recognises the benefits of a Board that possesses a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business.

The Board’s nominations and appointments will continue to be
made on merit basis based on its business needs from time to
time, with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of Board candidates shall be based on a range of
diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s business
model and specific needs from time to time, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, skills,
knowledge and professional experience.

The Board diversity policy is posted on the website of the
Company’s website. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the policy and monitoring the progress on achieving the
measurable objectives from time to time to ensure its effectiveness
and application.

The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the Board
as at the date of this Annual Report:
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognizes that it has the overall responsibility to
establish and maintain a sound and effective risk management
and internal control system to ensure the smooth running of
operations, safeguard the Group’s assets and the Shareholders’
interest as well as to ensure the reliability of financial statements
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. In devising
risk management and internal controls, the Group has regard to
evaluate and determinate the nature and extent of the risk, the
likelihood of it crystallizing, and the cost of controls. A system of
risk management and internal control is designed to manage, but
not eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute, assurance against
the risk of material misstatement, fraud or loss.

During the year, the Board delegated the management to evaluate
the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system. The management would
from time to time report the identified deficiencies to the Audit
Committee of the Company for recommendations. An annual
review of the risk management and internal control system would
be performed by the Board to ensure all significant risks are under
proper control.

The Group has engaged an independent internal control review
advisor (the “Internal Control Advisor”) to carry out the internal
audit function of the Group. Review of the Group’s internal
controls covered major financial, operational and compliance
controls, as well as risk management functions of different
systems has been performed on a systematic rotational basis on
the risk assessments of the operations and controls. During the
risk assessment process, the Internal Control Advisor interviewed
the relevant personnel and identified the business objectives and
significant risks of the Group. A risk management review and
internal audit report prepared by the Internal Control Advisor
which sets out the risks, issues and recommended action plan was
presented to the Board for review and endorsement. The Board
considered that significant risks of the Group were managed
within the acceptable level and the management will continue to
monitor the residual risks and report to the Board on ongoing
basis.

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the Board have reviewed the
risk management and internal control system and procedures and
they consider them effective and adequate.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group encourages environmental protection and promotes
environmental awareness for the employees. The Group
implements green office practices which encourage the employees
to make use of the e-statement or scanning copies, double-sided
printing and copying, setting up of recycle boxes for reducing
and disposing of waste. The Group is committed to reduce the
green-house emissions by turning off idle office lightings, air-
conditioning and other equipment after the standard working
hours. The Group regularly reviews its environmental practice to
make further improvement.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group actively promotes investor relations and
communications with the investment community when the interim
and year end financial results are announced and during the
course of the year. A policy on shareholders’ communication,
which is available on the Company’s website, was adopted and is
subject to regular review by the Board to ensure its effectiveness
and compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other
requirements.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
about the Group to the Shareholders through the publication of
notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. A
copy of the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company is posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, the directors of a company, notwithstanding anything in
its bye-laws shall, on the requisition of members of the company
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the company as at the
date of the deposit carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting of the company. The requisition must state the
purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the company, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or

more requisitionists.
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All substantive resolutions at general meetings are decided on a
poll which is conducted by the Company Secretary and scrutinised
by the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. The
results of the poll are posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Regularly updated financial, business
and other information about the Group is made available on the
Company’s website for the Shareholders and stakeholders.

The Directors are requested and encouraged to attend
shareholders’ meetings albeit unforeseen circumstances which
might prevent the Directors from attending such meetings.

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Enquiries,
comments and suggestions to the Board or the Company are
welcome and can be addressed to the Company Secretary by
mail to 8/F., Hale Weal Industrial Building, 22-28 Tai Chung
Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong or by email at
ir@qplhk.com.
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OVERVIEW

The Group herein discloses the Environmental, Social and
Governance report (the “ESG Report”) which is prepared in
accordance with Appendix 27 — Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. This
ESG Report follows the principles of materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency as recommended by the ESG Guide, and
mainly introduces the Group’s policies and measures regarding
environmental and social issues and aspects which are considered
to have significant impacts and are relevant to the Group’s
business and stakeholders for the year from 1 May 2016 to
30 April 2017.

The Group has been listed on the Stock Exchange since 1989. It
is principally engaged in the manufacture and sales of integrated
circuit leadframes, heatsinks, stiffeners and related products
and investment holding through its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
Its head office is located in Hong Kong and the manufacturing
plant is operated in Dongguan, the PRC, while the sales offices
are distributed throughout the United States and the Asia Pacific
region.

The Group envisions to be a global leader in the integrated
circuit leadframes products through commitment to high quality
manufacturing standards and custom-made products with
reliable and satisfactory customer services, bringing returns to
the investors and business partners, providing a healthy, safe and
pleasant working environment to all employees, and contributing
to the sustainable development of the local community and global
environment.

The Board has approved its updated corporate strategies and
policies incorporating all the related environmental and social
issues listed in the aspects and areas in the ESG Guide and has
delegated the Group’s Chairman and Chief Executive (as “CEO”)
to have the overall responsibility to implement accordingly and
to develop Key Performance Indicators (as “KPIs”) wherever
appropriate and necessary for future reference, continuing
actions and improvements. Through the Group’s management
and reporting organization structure, all the divisions’ general
managers and senior officers are obligated to report and to
support the Chairman and CEO on executing the approved
strategies and policies. The human resources manager reporting
directly to the CEO, apart from the routine human resources
management works, is specifically assigned the responsibility
of implementing and monitoring the environmental system
management to ensure minimization of risks and safety to all
employees, business and operation, and environment.
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MATERIAL AREAS AND ASPECTS, AND KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

A.

Environmental

The Group respects and treasures the environment. It
recognizes the importance of environmental protection,
complies with all applicable international, national, local
laws and regulations as well as the specific guides in the
industry. It is committed to the social responsibility of
protecting the environment as a responsible corporation,
seeking for “Zero pollution”. The Group has implemented
policies and taken measures to ensure its business and
operation is energy, water and resources saving, minimizing
emission of wastes, controlling and reducing the negative
impacts of waste on the environment, establishing the
environmental management system to implement periodic
review and continue improvements, improving the
employees’ environmental awareness and technical skills,
and strengthening environmental protection through co-
operation with suppliers, contractors and other business
partners.

The Group has been awarded the following certificates in
relation to environmental control and management:

i) Environmental Management System -
1SO14001:2004, valid till 28 November 2017;

(i1) Hazardous Substances Process Management — IEC
HSPM QC080000 till 11 January 2018;

(iii))  Quality Management System — [SO TS16949:2009,
valid till 27 April 2018; and 1SO9001:2008, valid till
23 July 2018;

(iv)  Environmentally Friendly Enterprise in 2006.

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the Group was not
subject to any confirmed violation case relating to emission
or waste discharges or other environmental issues having
an adverse impact on the Group or the environment.
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Al

Emissions and Waste
As we mainly produce leadframes, heatsinks,
stiffeners and related products for integrated circuit
leadframes for global semi-conductor enterprises,
the production processes can be summarized in the
following flow-chart:

Al

JER R JEY)
HMREMEZELS 2R ER DK
AR AR R B T ARAE - BB~
5 AR O B E i o AR E AR R T M A
J LATR Uit 2 J -

Lead Frame Final Inspection

Downest and Taping

5 BRAE U E Ko Bl

During each process, different types of emissions or
waste will be produced. The above processes marked
with “*” will produce the following polluting waste,
gases and/or water:

. Raw Material Cleaning — acidic and alkaline
waste water; exhaust gas and alkaline gas
emission.

. Etching — acidic and alkaline waste water;
etching fluid, hydrochloric acid mist,
phosphoric acid mist, exhaust gas and
alkaline gas emission.

. Plating — acidic and alkaline waste water and
cyanide waste water; exhaust gas, acidic mist,
alkaline gas and cyanide gas emission.

The Group fully understands and is aware of
its manufacturing processes producing polluted,
hazardous and/or non-hazardous wastes, gases
and/or emissions, which will have significant
impacts on the health and safety of employees, local
residents, plants and animals, and the surrounding
environment. The Group has therefore invested
substantially on the environmental pollution control
system, equipment and installations, implemented
very strict rules, regulations and measures, and
taken continuous monitoring and management to
ensure that all polluted, hazardous and/or non-
hazardous wastes, gases and/or emissions are totally
under control and in full compliance of the local,
national and international laws and regulations as
well as industry standards.
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Major polluting hazardous and non-hazardous
waste, gases and/or emissions are summarized and
handled in below:

Waste Water:

The manufacturing plant will produce 4 types
of waste water including (i) acidic, alkaline and
cyanide waste water, which are hazardous, and (ii)
the general living and kitchen waste water, which
is generally non-hazardous, during the processing
of raw material cleaning, etching, plating, pre-
treatment and post-treatment. For etching waste
water, it will be collected through pipes into
specialized containers for treatment, and thereafter
the after-treated water will be reused. For Plating
waste water, it will pass through 3 rinsing pools,
and the rinsed water in the first and second rinsed
pool will have a relatively high concentration of
pollutants and will be channeled through pipes to
polluted water treatment stations to process, while
the rinsed water of the third rinsed pool will be
relatively low in pollutants, and will be channeled
through pipes to recycling pool for treatment and
then reuse in production.

(a) High acidic and alkaline waste water with PH
below 1 and PH 14 or above respectively —
they will be separately collected in respective
acidic/alkaline waste water tank, and will
be pumped back under meter control to
the acidic and alkaline adjusting tank for
dilution purpose.

(b) Cyanide waste water — the high and low
concentration cyanide waste water will be
collected in an adjusting pool, and as they
are poisonous, they will be pumped to first
and second cyanide cracking reaction tank
by adding lye to control the PH and at
the same time to add sodium hypochlorite
oxidizer to crack cyanide, and thereafter the
treated waste water will be sent to the central
treatment station for final treatment up to
the required standard before releasing to the
public drainage system.
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(c)

(d)

Low acidic and alkaline waste water —
the manufacturing process will produce
substantial amounts of low acidic and
alkaline waste water, and they will be
collected, mixed and neutralized in the acid
and alkaline adjusting pool before draining
to the central station either for reuse or
further treatment.

General living and kitchen waste water —
they will be pumped to 3 graded septic tanks
for initial treatment and oil filtering pool for
oil filtering respectively before draining to
the central station for final treatment before
releasing to the public drainage system.

Waste Gases:

The manufacturing and general living such as food

preparation and cleaning processes stated below

will produce polluted waste gases, which may be

hazardous or non-hazardous.

(a)

(b)

From the manufacturing processes, acidic,
alkaline, hydrogen cyanide and organic gas
emissions will be generated; the first 2 gas
emissions come from the Etching and Plating
processes, the 3 gas emission comes from
cyanide plating process, and the last gas
emission comes from lamination process.
The manufacturing plant now has 2, 4 and
4 gases emission cylinder pipes for hydrogen
cyanide, acidic and alkaline gases emissions
respectively. Acidic gas emissions will contain
hydrogen chloride and sulfuric acid mist.
Alkaline gas emissions will contain ammonia.
Hydrogen cyanide will contain cyanide gas.
Organic emissions will contain total volatile
organic compounds (TVOC).

From the general living processes, oily mist
will be generated from cooking and CO,
will be indirectly generated from the use of
electricity for operation and living purposes.

(c)

(d)
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To clear, reduce and control the waste gas emissions,
the Group has introduced different handling
methods by installing different types of equipment.
For acidic and alkaline gas emissions, water
absorption method is used by installing packed
spray towers to cleanse them. For hydrogen cyanide
gases emission, alkaline absorption method is
used with sodium hydroxide or sodium carbonate
solution by installing packed spray towers to
dissolve and cleanse them. For oily mist, filtering
pumps are used to filter the oil. After filtering and
cleansing, the treated gases must satisfy the <Plating
Pollutants Emission Standard> (21900-2008) before
emitting through the twelve 25-meter high discharge
tubes into the sky.

Solid Waste:

The manufacturing processes will produce waste of
light bulbs, hydraulic oil, cutting fluid, acid cotton
core, clothes, gloves, empty containers, films slag,
etching fluid, waste water treatment sludge, copper
liquid, circuit board and frame materials. These
wastes will be collected, handled and treated by
licensed environmental treatment or waste recycling

companies.
Noise Pollution:

They mainly come from machine and aerodynamic
operation from diesel generators, cooling systems,
cold water and high pressure pumps, cold water
towers, ventilation fans, forging machines, tableting
machines, forming machine, loaders and cars.

In short, the Group has and will continue to
design a manufacturing process and to install the
latest systems and equipment for the objectives to
reduce the toxicity and to minimize the volume
and quantity of polluted water and gas emissions,
and solid waste generation through chemical and
physical treatments, recycling and reusing, etc. To
monitor the emissions and waste generation, the
Group has compiled a record on the types and
volume of polluted water, gas emissions including
CO; and solid waste as a KPI.
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A2.

During the reporting period, the Group had
complied with all the local, national and
international environmental rules, regulations and
laws, and industry standards on gases, water and
solid emissions and discharges. There was no fine or
warning received.

Use of Resources

As an integrated circuit leadframes products
manufacturer, the Group uses substantial amounts
of electricity and diesel for power generation;
water for cleansing and cooling; raw materials for
production including but not limited to metals
namely lead frames, copper, iron, chemicals (namely
hydrochloric acid, iron oxide, sodium hydroxide,
ammonium persulfate, sulfuric acid, etc.), plastic
bags and carton boxes for products packaging. In
the offices, administrative and sales offices, printing
paper and inks and other consumables are mainly
used.

In order to, firstly save production costs and
secondly preserve natural resources to enhance
sustainable development of the world, the Group
has introduced clear guidelines and instructions on
the efficient use of resources including electricity,
fresh water, papers and specified metals and
chemicals. On one hand, the Group has continuously
researched and studied the production process and
technology with an objective to use the resources in
a more efficient and economical way. On the other
hand, all levels of employees are informed to follow
our approved environmental policy and measures
under the principles of “reducing, reusing and
recycling” (as “3R”) to reduce the quantities and
volume of resources to be used.
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In our manufacturing and office operation, the AR R T N R AR
Group has implemented the followings to save HHOEIE DL R R - DAET &) B T 1R
electricity, fresh water, paper and specified metals K~ AR DA B R E < e KA B
and chemicals consumption: 1Y #E

. Electricity and diesel — strengthen the . By B S — T g 22w R

electricity usage management on air-
conditioning and compressors; regular
maintenance to prevent leakage of cooling
and compressed air; wrapping insulation on
air-conditioning pipes; installing separation
doors for different types of working areas;
adjusting and fixing the air temperature to
a reasonable level; optimal arrangement of
production processes, and upgrading of the
production equipment to energy efficient
levels.

. Water — installing meters to monitor the .
water consumption on a regular basis, and
adjusting whenever necessary; constantly
maintaining the production equipment to
stop leaking, dripping or wasting.

. Paper — promoting automation and paperless .
office such as storage of documents in
electronic version, communication via emails
and messages; printing on both sides of
paper, and using of recycled paper.

. Metals and chemicals — constantly .
researching and introducing better
technology and processes for production to
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Consumption Record” as a KPI.
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A3.

Social
Bl.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s manufacturing processes have
consumed many types and substantial amounts
or volumes of resources, including electricity,
diesel, water, specified metals and chemicals. We,
however, have been trying our best efforts to be
environmentally responsible by reducing and saving
our resources consumption. It is not just for cost
savings, but also for preserving the natural resources
for tomorrow. The Group has always invested on
upgrading the systems and equipment, researching
and applying new technology and production
processes, training and educating employees to
enhance skills and mental preparation to reduce
resources consumption, to stop wasting and to
protect the environment. Throughout the reporting
period, there were no irregularities on natural
resources consumption reported which alerted the
management.

Employment

The Group values highly its employees who are
considered as the most important asset for its
development and growth. We commit to providing
equal and fair opportunities to all employees on
recruitment, promotion, compensation and benefits;
and promoting a safe, healthy and harmonious
workplace. The Group strictly complies with the
relevant laws and regulations as stipulated in the
Employment Ordinance of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) and Labor
Law of the PRC (“H # AR ILFIE 2 #)i%”). The
recruitment of child labor and forced labor is totally
forbidden. The HR Manager reports directly to the
Group’s CEO and is responsible for implementing
the Group’s human resources strategies and polices
which are detailed in the Employee Handbook. All
the terms and conditions contained therein related
to recruitment, probation, promotion, termination,
remuneration, bonus and allowances, holidays
and leaves, retirement scheme, medical, travel and
social security insurance, mandatory provident
fund, work schedules, performance assessment and
communication, communication processes, etc.
are in strict compliance with national and local
government labor laws, rules and regulations.
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The management highly recognizes its employees’
contribution to its business growth and offers
career advancement opportunities for all employees.
Recruitment of new employees will follow a pre-
determined process, and an employment contract
must be signed between the newly recruited
employee and the Group before commencement of
services. All the promotion, internal transfer and
job rotation as well as new recruitments are handled
with no discrimination on sex, race, religion, gender,
age or disability bias. The management structure
chart, the company organizational chart, the
department function chart are made available to all
staffs for understanding their career paths within the
Group. Training and career development programs
are monitored closely by the human resources
managers.

Employees’ remunerations are determined with
reference to the prevailing market conditions in line
with their competency, qualifications and experience.
Salaries and wages are paid directly to employees’
bank accounts within the prescribed wage period.
The Group honored all obligations including the
payment of salaries and wages, holidays and leaves,
compensations, insurance and health benefits
without disputes with our employees for the year
ended 30 April 2017.

To build a mutually understanding and acceptable
working environment, the Group encourages
employees to communicate open-heartedly.
Employee representatives are invited regularly
to meetings to discuss issues relating to working
conditions, health and safety and employment
terms and conditions. Grievance procedures are
listed in the employee handbook and all employee
grievances will be handled independently and
treated in strictest confidence. For the year ended
30 April 2017, the Group did not have any violation
related to employment and labor and the number
of employees terminated by the Group for various
reasons was at a very low 1.18%, which showed that
the Group had a harmonious relationship with its
employees.
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To ensure a constant understanding about the
Group’s employee situations, a “Management
Review Report” with breakdown of total number
of employees in different sectors, gender and age
groups, and staff turnover is reviewed and updated
on a regular basis.

Health and Safety

The Group undertakes to safeguard the health and
safety of its employees and requires all employees
to strictly observe its health and safety policies.
The Group offers group insurance to eligible
employees to cover term life benefit, accidental
health and dismemberment benefit and total and
permanent disability benefit in the event of death
and permanent, total or partial disablement. In
addition, medical insurance and travel insurance
are offered to eligible employees in Hong Kong. For
all qualified employees in the PRC, national social
security insurance are provided in accordance with
national laws and regulations.

The Group strives to identify any actual and
potential hazards and risks to employees and works
towards a safe and hygienic work environment for
employees by reducing, eliminating and controlling
hazards at workplace. A complete set of safety and
health measures is available. Training is provided to
equip employees with the adequate knowledge and
skills to perform their duties in a safe manner. In
case of accidents, regardless of minor or serious,
employees are required by the in-house rules to
notify their superiors immediately without delay.
Appropriate remedial measures and compensation
actions including any necessary reporting in
accordance with the local or national laws are
handled promptly.

The Group had not recorded any claim disputes on
compensations or work related injury for its Hong
Kong office, but four minor injury during work
claims were recorded in the PRC manufacturing
plant up to the end of 30 April 2017. These claims
were settled with satisfaction and without any
disputes.
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B4.

Development and Training

The Group recognizes the importance of staff
development and training. Through continuous
training and learning, employees are able to equip
themselves with the necessary skills and knowledge
of their jobs and further career development is
encouraged. The Group offers different types
of training programs regularly on an as needed
basis. Basic induction training is arranged for new
employees at the time of joining. The Group has
already set up 23 training programs for different
levels and types of employees for 2017/2018. A
training programs record showing the types and
number of attendants for the year ended 30 April
2017 has been maintained as a KPI to monitor and
to review their effectiveness.

Labor Standards

The Group has a comprehensive human resources
policy in place regarding recruitment, dismissal,
promotion, leave, holidays and benefits to support
its works on manpower resources. The Group
complies with the PRC and HKSAR labor laws and
employment regulations in the relevant jurisdictions
in which it operates and adopts the respective
national standards as its minimum labor standards
on labor protection and welfare. The Group also
maintains strict compliance with the laws in relation
to equal employment opportunities, prevention of
child or forced labor in different regions. At the
same time, all job applicants are required to submit
their credentials, like academic qualifications,
professional skill certificates, references and identity
card for verification and record purpose during
recruitment.

Operating Practices

The Group aims at providing quality products and quality

service to customers. It conducts business according to the

operation practices which are in compliance with the local

and international laws. It requires its employees to observe

and follow a high code of conduct.
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Be.

Supply Chain Management

The Group purchases metals and chemicals such
as copper alloy, potassium cyanide, purify cleanser
and photoresist for further value-added production.
These metals and chemicals must be sourced
world-wide. Hence, the Group has established and
implemented the material procurement management
system and supplier management system. Placement
of supplies contracts are executed by means of
tendering under open-bid and/or invitation, private
negotiation, etc. To strengthen the management
of sourcing and procurement and to reduce
the procurement costs, strict assessment of the
suppliers is conducted to ensure that the suppliers
are not only committed to the cost and quality
of the products/material, but also committed to
the compliance of laws, rules and regulation. The
market reputation and previous track records of
the suppliers will also be considered. To support
calls from international organizations for fair trade
and practices, and sustainable development, we
have requested our contracted suppliers to comply
with “QPL’s conflict metals policy” and “EICC-
GeSI Conflict-free Smelter Program”, under which
contracted suppliers are required to provide non-
conflict-metals guarantee on sources of the smelter/
mining to ensure materials are not sourced from
mines in conflict areas.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing high quality
products and satisfactory customer services. Starting
from sourcing and procurement of raw materials
and throughout the production process until
delivery of the products to the customers, the Group
has implemented strict in-process quality assurance
and 100% final inspection procedures to guarantee
product quality.
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To ensure customer satisfaction, the Group adheres
to high standard of customer service. Through
effective and flexible production standards and
provides real-time customer service, we are known
in the industry for our quick delivery of products.
The design team within the Group can adjust
our services according to different customer
requirements. In addition to the customers for the
design of etching and stamping, we also produce a
wide range of standard products including SOIC
(small online integrated circuit), QFP (Quad Flat
Package), TQFP (thin quad flat package), PDIP
(plastic dual in to package), PLCC (plastic leaded
chip carrier) and TSOP (thin small outline package).
For customers who need to provide long-term lead
frame products, we will work together to reduce
costs and enhance services through consultation
with the customer in order to achieve long-term co-
operation. The Group has also implemented “Products
and services related complaints handling guide
— QSG 3004” to deal with customer complaints.
It is our policy that if the customer complaint is
validated, we will accept the return and replace it.

During the reporting period, there were no material
complaints about products and services, and the
return and replacement of goods sold accounted for
2.3% of total sales only.

The Group’s business and operation have generated
a substantial volume of private, confidential and
sensitive information particularly on suppliers,
co-operation partners and customers. Our clients
frequently provide us with their integrated circuit
designs, operation status, financial positions and
commercial terms of contracts, etc. These types of
information are extremely important and sensitive,
and by law, we are obligated to safeguard and protect
them. The Group fully understands its obligation,
and has taken measures to ensure strictest protection
of the information against internal and external
unauthorized access. In our employee handbook
clause 7, employees have signed their undertaking
not to access and use information they may come
across during their works without the approval of
the Group. The Group has the right to take legal
actions to sue or seek for damages and compensation
from employees if they breach their undertaking. To
strengthen the information protection, the Group
has enforced special management procedures and
security protection hardware to prevent unauthorized
access and possible information leakage. No private
or confidential information was reported to be leaked
and/or stolen for the year ended 30 April 2017.
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Anti-Corruption

The Group is well aware of the importance of
honesty and integrity and has included appropriate
policies and guidelines in the Employee Handbook
for assisting all its employees to understand and
comply with the legal obligations while under
employment with the Group.

Under the Code of Conduct, Section 6 of the
Employee Handbook, the issues related to bribery,
conflict of interests, intellectual property rights
are monitored and managed properly. Channels
and procedures for reporting any misconduct,
malpractice or illegal behaviors are listed in the
Employee Handbook.

For the year ended 30 April 2017 the Group
reported no bribery nor corruption cases.

Community

BS.

Community Investment

The Group targets to be a responsible corporation
and is committed to Corporate Social Responsibility
in accordance with the Electronic Industry
Citizenship Coalition (EICC) Code of Conduct.
During regular meetings, employees are encouraged
to participate and to serve in a wide range of
community activities so as to contribute to society.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture and sale
of integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks, stiffeners and related
products and investment holding.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 67.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 30 April 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year, the
material factors underlying its results and financial position and
material attributable factors of the development and likely future
developments of the Group’s business, are provided throughout
this Annual Report, particularly in the following separate sections:

(a)  Review of the Group’s business — “Chairman’s Statement”;

(b) The Group’s risk management framework, the principal
risks and the controls in place — “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Corporate Governance Report” and “Directors’ Report™;

(c) Future development in the Group’s business — “Chairman’s
Statement”;

(d) Analysis using financial key performance indicators —
“Financial Highlights” and “Chairman’s Statement”;

(e) Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance — “Corporate Governance Report” and

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report™;

) Discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations — “Corporate Governance Report”
and “Independent Auditor’s Report”; and

(2) An account of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers and suppliers and others — “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Directors’ Report”.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not have reserves available for distribution to
the Shareholders as at 30 April 2017.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of the contributed surplus if:

) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i1) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that our employees are one of the greatest
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The Group
continues to provide training for its staff to enhance technical
and product knowledge as well as knowledge of industry quality
standards. The Group maintains good working relationships with
its employees and has not experienced any material disruption of
its normal business operations due to strikes or labour disputes.
The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with our business partners, which including the
Group’s customers and suppliers. The Group believes that a
healthy relationship can be build up by providing better products
and enhanced services to the customers, maintaining an effective
communication channel to the employees and collaborating with
key suppliers.

JBe AR
AN\ Z AR A A 2 B A O SR A B
R EE21

ARGy i) 22 W) 53 Uk
REE—BENA =B AN TR AT
53 IR T IR 2 Gt A

WRYEHFE - N —FERAE (BITA) > Ao
R 2 H AR R AR AT A N IR o SR 7E R AUF UL
AL AT B S B P E IR SR A R SR
73R

@) 8 AL EEVE (BN IR B MR #E5) RPN A
f& 5 8

(i)  AwREE 2] & BAE e H IR DR
HERf B TRALBRGRERE=%2
A -

Yok ~ B B i
% S 3 R R T R A RS 4 PR T A
T A B B AR M 12 -

BLOE H ~ % 5 B A HE g AR

A £ [ 58 R AR B YA B R AR B R 2 B
REEZ AL HARH B TR
DA v B9 B 7 b Ak DA R AT S B AR T
it o A4 1] B HC A B PR AR RAF TARBRAR > HLHOE
WSS A R W TR R TR 0 A A T AT A
ERPE AL R ROEALEEEF &4
METE S5 BB RS RFBARZ BB AL
R A5 et R 1Y BR AR RE B A 1) & 5 14 B A
an S BB T MR B - HE R BLIE B0 A 0
TRIE DA K B E AR AR 45 O U oL -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
=R

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and
business prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s
businesses. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by our Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
turn out to be material in the future.

RELIANCE ON MAJOR CUSTOMERS

In the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 46% (2016: 50%) of the
total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer accounted
for approximately 15% (2016: 18%) of total sales. If any of these
customers ceases to do business with the Group, or substantially
reduces the volume of its business with the Group and if the
Group is unable to secure new customers with similar sales volume
and profit margin, the Group’s business, results of operations and
financial position may be materially and adversely affected.

RELIANCE ON LIMITED NUMBER OF SUPPLIERS
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 65% (2016: 61%) of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 22% (2016: 22%) of total purchases.
If any of these suppliers do not continue to supply materials to
the Group at favourable or similar prices or at all, the Group
may not be able to find another suitable replacement supplier in a
timely manner or on terms acceptable to the Group or at all, and
the Group’s business, results of operations and financial condition
could be adversely affected.

EQUITY PRICE RISK

Equity price risk mainly arises from fluctuation in quoted market
price of the Group’s investment in financial assets. The Group
is exposed to equity price risk through its financial assets at
FVTPL. The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL have significant
concentration of price risk in the Hong Kong stock market.
The Group counter the equity price risk by ensuring a board
diversification of the Group’s investment portfolio and ensuring
the investment portfolio are frequently reviewed and monitored.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s turnover and purchases for the
year ended 30 April 2017 attributable to its major customers and
suppliers were as follows:

Turnover attributable to: BT A 8 SEHE
Largest customer mREF
Five largest customers HREF

Purchases attributable to: ST AL BR R
Largest supplier e KA JE R
Five largest suppliers R L 1 P

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a
Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual
Report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Tung Lok
(Executive Chairman and Chief Executive)
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick
Ms. Tung Siu Ching
Mr. Wong Ka Lok Andrew (appointed on 5 October 2016)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Wong Wai Man (resigned on 30 June 2017)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Yau Chi Hang

Mr. Chu Chun On Franco (appointed on 15 September 2016)
Ms. Chung Hoi Yan (appointed on 15 November 2016)

Mr. How Sze Ming (retired on 8 September 2016)

Mr. Lee Kwok Wan (retired on 8 September 2016)

Pursuant to bye-law 102A of the Bye-laws, Mr. Phen Hoi Ping
Patrick, Ms. Tung Siu Ching and Mr. Wong Ka Lok Andrew
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves to
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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ERGH
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S e R AT BN R B B M W It
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING £ 2 Hi
SHARES

As at 30 April 2017, the interests and short positions of the & =& — L4 A =+ H > RIEA LN 7 4% I8 F
Directors, chief executive and their associates in the shares, # & &6 B (78 5% K W B 6] 1) 5535216 1%
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its B 2 & 50 Ml A Bk sl AR 45 458 o <y HI) ] 2 %0 &
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the AR KB 2 &EFH  EEITH A B R #5F
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) as recorded in the 2 W% A A A A w] S HAR Bk B (2 3% &
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section ¢ M Hi £ W5l 55 XV &8 ([ %5 R & HH]) =2
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the {7~ A B B s EfE RS 2 RE& SOR B R
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN SHARES AND W AR 2 ) B Ay e M B B By 2 0 A
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Number of issued ordinary shares/
underlying shares of the Company
AR W) © B AT % 0 M B A B
Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Personal Family Corporate of the
Name of Directors interests interests interests Total Company
iR AHB
BiRAZ
EREAH i\ B i % I BE 15 o ) B 4 A [ipid’A
Mr. Li Tung Lok R 44
— Ordinary shares in issue — BB AT A % 63,515,530 900,000 4,647,736 69,063,266
(Note a) (Note b)
(MfiFa) (H#b)
— Unlisted share options — I b7 R 16,500,000 = - 16,500,000
80,015,530 900,000 4,647,736 85,563,266 3.79%
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick 8211 5c 4
— Unlisted share options — I I 7T A 5,000,000 0 0 5,000,000 0.22%
Notes: B at
a. The family interests of 900,000 shares represent the interest of the  a. XK )& WE 25 2.900,000 1% B 13 ) 25 [A] 4 Je A & #
wife of Mr. Li Tung Lok. T2 HEAR o
b. Mr. Li Tung Lok wholly owns Solar Forward Company Limited, b. 2 ) S5 A 2 AT D A IRA ] > 3% A
which owns 4,647,736 shares of the Company. 154,647,736 BEA LS 7] A4y o

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2017, none of the Directors  F& b CFT i #8 & 4b > it = F —L4EMWA =+ H »
nor chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have  AE#EA /A A FH sk EFEATH A B R AN A LH
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or  AH W % 8 2 B 4 ~ A B B 0 o B 56 op 3 1
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations. AR B A AT T A £ SR A
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SHARE OPTIONS Ji I H

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in A7\ il M B B 51 B 2 56 1% O 45 & B8 ) % Kt

note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. 7130

The movements in the Company’s share options granted to the T H & I B Ar %

AR T B SRR AR TR 2 S )

Exercise period

Tt

22 April 2016 to 21 April 2026
“E-AENAZTCHE
ZETRENA A

22 April 2016 to 21 April 2026
ZE-RNFMAZYZHE
ZEZANENAZ—H

22 April 2016 to 21 April 2026
ZE-RFNAZTZRE
ZEZANENAZ AR

Directors and employees during the year were as follows: P/
Movement during the year
Outstanding at Outstanding at
Date of grant 1 May 2016 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 30 April 2017
EREH
REZ—AE REZ—LE
fA—H JWA=1H
#HAH LENEY (5541 BTl LI BEH A7 B
Category 1: Directors
BB EE
Mr. Li Tung Lok 22 April 2016 16,500,000 - - - - 16,500,000
RESEE “E-RERA TR
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick 22 April 2016 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000
AR “E-AENAZHZH
Total Directors 21,500,000 - - - - 21,500,000
EES b
Category 2: Eligible
Employees
FRRERER
22 April 2016 1,370,000 - - - (160,000) 1,210,000
ZE-NENAZHCA
Total employees 1,370,000 - - - (160,000) 1,210,000
fE A4t
Total all categories 22,870,000 - - - (160,000) 22,710,000

B A st
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described in the sections
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares” and “Share Options”, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of them had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company or its associated corporations, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, no other transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

No Director was a party to a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 April 2017, to the best knowledge of the Board and chief
executives of the Company, the following persons were substantial
shareholders of the Company and had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholder Capacity

Jiz 3K 44 W =7y

Fp T A B () R A F] Trustee
ZREN

2 T A JBe By Be A B OB Ay 2 i 4

RoF—LENA=Z+tH REEGRALFA
FEITBEANBRM FTHALEARF 2 T E
JBe S5 Sl AR 4 B B R B B 4 P B K
AR 8 75 I 0 8 0k 1 55 336 R A B 2 B
N HE 45 SR A

Percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital
issued ordinary of the
shares held Company

i A 2> ]

BT CBITRAZ
W8 ik B H [ipid4
181,200,000 8.03%

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interest or short position in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 30 April 2017.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are determined with reference to their respective duties
and responsibilities, expertise and experience in the industry,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
remuneration benchmarks from other companies and prevailing
market conditions. Whilst the Board retains its power to determine
the remuneration of non-executive Directors, the responsibility
for reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management of the
Company is delegated to the remuneration committee of the
Company.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company and considers all of them
to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation
on independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;
(i) the absence of involvement in the daily management of the
Company; and (iii) the absence of any financial, business or family
or other material/relevant relationships between the members of
the Board or circumstances which would interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgment.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board as at the date of
this Annual Report, the percentage of the Company’s shares which
are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares throughout the year ended 30 April 2017.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Tung Lok
Chairman

31 July 2017
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
QPL International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 67 to 143, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 April 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 30 April 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matter

B 3¢ 7 st 2

Impairment of loan receivables

MW 5 st Z it E

We identified the impairment of loan receivables as a
key audit matter due to estimation uncertainty inherent
in the management’s credit risk assessment process in
respect of the collectability of loan receivables.

Fh A R P R A B A 2 T i ] M A L B R A
FEAFAE A 28 2 Al T > ARAT 1 08 Uig Bk 2 W (B 51 4 —
THBA Gt S0 -

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the loan receivables. Appropriate impairment loss for
estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence that the amount
is not recoverable.

I o A AR ET I Ui B 3K 2 m] e R o B B R
5 BN A B SRIE R AT i IE] s A B g Al R AS R
[\ SR R A 72 v I T S 1 A R o

In determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful
debts is required, the Group takes into consideration
the credit quality, value of collaterals and likelihood
of collection. Specific allowance is only made for the
loan receivables that are unlikely to be collected and
is recognised on the difference between the carrying
amount of loan receivables and the present value of
estimated future cash flow discounted using the original
effective interest rate. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise.

A i E S A ZEUE R AR AT o A R A AR B S
BRI B Bl ] 22 T BB o AR SR A AN K
TR i ] 2 R s R A R E A S B RIR
TE () B 42 J5 A R R 3 B 22 Al R AR B 4 T i B
2 (M 2 26 B e w8 R 0 T A o v T R ORI B B U KO
TEH > I AT B g AR E R W (E S 1A

As disclosed in notes 4 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amount of loan
receivables at 30 April 2017 was approximately
HK$80,620,000, and no impairment allowance on loan
receivables was made in the current year.

N 45 G RS MR M ska 16T B B - R —F — LA
= B 2 i 8 R T (E A £580,620,0009 7T - £F A1 3lf
e 70 B o R K AR L D A
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

PR 5 7% Gt 2 A 7 A% b B O BT 3

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of loan
receivables included:

ANAT 3 R L vt 2 A R R R L4

. Understanding the Group’s policy on granting
loans to the borrowers and the related credit control
including ongoing loan monitoring procedures;

. TR AR AR BT A N 2 BOR B A B LA
Fr R B AR P TE N 2 A5 R

. Evaluating the management’s assessment on the
credit quality of the borrowers by examining
records including financial background, current
creditworthiness, collateral and subsequent settlement
from the borrowers;

o RMEE BRI M E B AR B 5 BRE R
HEA i B H AR &5 S UL R0 Bk DL R AR fE RN 25 &
HBER;

. Checking the existence and recoverable amount of the
underlying collateral.

o MAEREA MR A A H AT i ] g
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Key audit matter
B &t 7% 5t A

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

¥ ~ oy R it 19 0 fEL

We identified the impairment of property, plant and
equipment as a key audit matter because the impairment
assessment involved significant management estimation
on the discount rate and assumptions adopted in the
underlying cash flows of each asset or cash-generating
unit.

HIR A P B A W SEAAAR h  R THE
JEE BB 48 E B B A BR B 4 O B 2 A B R Rk R
DL B8 B Al 5t A AT M W 36 - R B B0 (E
TitE 8 2% B 9wt S 0E o

In view of the operating loss of the Group’s
manufacturing business, the directors of the Company
conducted a review of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment for which the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating-unit was determined based on fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use which is
based on discounted cash flow method taking into
account a suitable discount rate. Significant changes
in forecasted revenue growth, raw material cost and
discount rate, among other factors, may result in
additional of impairment on the Group’s property,
plant and equipment.

WiE HBEMNEEFLCEEROBFN, BAAE
FE BEEMYE B R SRMET TELS BEE
H L7 B AT s ] 4 R AR A o B A B fi
(B 5 T {680 P A8 (EL R P 78 A7 B R S 4 BB
B EEFHA  HEHRASE R - ERR A KB (B
FEHAWRR) WERESTRRES BEEYE- KBS
Be 6 5 B9 R AN BE

As disclosed in notes 4 and 12 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment at 30 April 2017 was
approximately HK$27,843,000, and no impairment was
recognised during the year.

N4 A W5 i 3R B 4 M 12T 4 7 > i =& — L 4E W A
= H 2 W3 W BB 2 MR T (E A 527,843,000
TC > 4R A Sl M A R R E

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BR3¢ 2% Gt 2 A 7 A% b B O BT 3

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of property,
plant and equipment included:

AATH W) 2 W B S 2 W B e 2 AR BR R R L4

. Understanding the management’s process on
identification of indicators on impairment of
property, plant and equipment;

o THREEEEYE - RES S SO B TR R A T E A

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the model used
by the management to and determining whether
it complies with the requirements of HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”;

. WHMEEEEIT AR GEYE WEELESHERE
g ah e R 253658 [ 4 A BE ) AHLE

. Assessing the appropriateness of the assumptions
and inputs relating to forecasted revenue growth, raw
material cost and discount rate by comparing them
against approved management budget and future
plans, historical performance and industry trend;

o BRUME R RT 0 B TE OE ROR ARG B R SR R B AT
SERBHEAT O FEAL B FH AR R - R R R A
T A B2 A B A A8 s T oo A S0 1) 788 1

. Evaluating the actual performance with the
management forecast;

o MEHEERNAAEREB

. Engaging our internal expert to evaluate the
appropriateness of the discount rate used by the
management to determine the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating-unit; and

o EEFENTRELR > BRANE HIG R O B4 AR ALY
A TR R R RS

. Evaluating the sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions, including discount rates, growth rates
and raw material usage rates to evaluate the extent of
impact on the discounted cash flows.

. T Ak R B B R ) SRR A A AR AT B R R R K
JEAARLAE T 38 > LA A 365 7 BB 6 0 B AR AR T o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Hung Suk Fan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 July 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aok 1 48 g S LAt 2 v WA A

For the Year Ended 30 April 2017 #&% =% — L4 H =+ H L4

2017 2016
—EF L A2
NOTES HKS$’000 HK$’000
Bt it T# T
Turnover e 5 280,719 287,021
Changes in inventories of finished goods %4 & ff A 21 4 H i 2
and work in progress 17185 W) 3,049 (445)
Raw materials and consumables used 18 P DA ) B3 AR (134,635) (132,361)
Other income FHAth fie A 6 6,368 5,530
Exchange gain, net [ 58, 5 % 13 2,632 2,292
Net fair value (loss) gain on financial 0N S AEFF AR £5 2 42
asset at fair value through profit HE ([N R EF AR
or loss (“FVTPL”) it ) A FE (518 i s
ik (59,379) 52,031
Net fair value loss on derivative ke TR
financial instrument NDIWIN 7= RETE = (153)
Other gains and losses HoAh I 55 K s 48 6 = 262
Staff costs fE B A (82,085) (94,397)
Depreciation of property, plant and W TR R T e
equipment 12 (1,986) (4,623)
Impairment loss on property, plant and  #72& ~ B 3% skl 2
equipment A 5 18 12 = (23,100)
Other expenses HoAth B 52 (76,005) (92,012)
Finance cost Fill & R A 1,122) (1,099)
Loss before taxation o i I s 15 (62,444) (1,054)
Taxation Bi 16 7 7,294 (9,937)
Loss for the year AAE T 18 8 (55,150) (10,991)
Other comprehensive expense for the year: 45 4F J& H fth 4> iy B 57 :
Item that may be subsequently reclassified ] 3 H 1% B 3 /0 5 % 18 2
to profit or loss: ZIHHHA -
Exchange differences arising on S AN T A
translation of foreign operations i 5, 7% A (50) (15)
Total comprehensive expense for the year A< 4F & 4 1fi B 37 48 48 (55,200) (11,006)
Loss per share 4 i e 18 9

Basic and diluted FLOR K e T (HK2.44 cents #fll)  (HK2.99 cents i#ll)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A o B B IR DL AR

At 30 April 2017 JAZEF—LHFMHA=+H

2017 2016
—L4 “ERE
NOTES HKS$’000 HK$’000
Bt 7t F# T T
Non-current asset Ik it B B
Property, plant and equipment Y3 WA KRt 12 27,843 17,516
Current assets i By &
Inventories yaaEy 13 41,503 31,930
Trade and other receivables B 5 o Ho At JRE Wi R TE 14 59,335 70,192
Deposits and prepayments i 4 I FAAS RIE 14 5,370 6,014
Financial asset at FVTPL N RAEFI AR 8 2
<5 P 15 247,908 84,214
Loan receivables e Wi B K 16 80,620 =
Bank balances and cash W|ATH B B & 17 322,761 641,668
757,497 834,018
Current liabilities i B 21
Trade and other payables B Gy o HoAth & Ak 3k TE 18 34,463 32,585
Deposits and accrued expenses ¥ & I T2 18 21,710 22,188
Taxation payable JRE SR T 833 777
Bank and other borrowings SRAT B HoAth i £ 19 33,233 37,303
Obligations under finance leases il L B AR 20 491 282
90,730 93,135
Net current assets i B e A 666,767 740,883

694,610 758,399
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A A IR LAk

At 30 April 2017 RZF—L4FMA =+ H

2017 2016
S-Sl RN
NOTES HKS$’000 HK$°000
Mt 7t Tt T T
Capital and reserves & A I bk
Share capital Jie A 21 180,501 180,501
Share premium and reserves J& A3 Y A B fdh e 513,145 568,345
Equity attributable to owners  YNEIE 2PN Y E o
of the Company 693,646 748,846
Non-current liabilities | RER
Obligations under finance leases il B R 20 964 967
Deferred taxation A% SiE i TE 22 = 8,586
964 9,553
694,610 758,399

The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 143 were A ZH6TE 143 H 2 &5 A B i 2 58 5 @ it —
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on & —-E4-t A =+ — H b i 3 52 4 7] 5% > 36

31 July 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: FHIE R RE R GEE:
Li Tung Lok Phen Hoi Ping Patrick
2= [n] 4 AR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

#HH #HH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EOLJITY
»/T =] %ﬁﬁ&%ﬂ i%

For the Year Ended 30 April 2017

BE_F

—LEWH =+ HIEEE

Capital Share

Share Share Contributed redemption options Translation Accumulated
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
B A i ¢
A BpEE  ERRE it i fifi ERRG BB A5t
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS000
TH#T TH#T T#x T#T TH#T T#T T#T TH#T
(Notea)  (Note b)
(Hita)  (HiEb)
At 1 May 2015 RZF—RELA—H 61,390 147,812 40,475 12,310 - 284 (233,815) 28,456
Loss for the year AEEER = - = = = = (10,91)  (10,991)
Other comprehensive expense for the year 7% 4 H {2 i B 3 - = = = = (15 = (15)
Total comprehensive expense AAEHE AT A
for the year - - - - - (15)  (10,991)  (11,006)
Recognition of equity-settled The R P A 5 5 D M
share based payments AR 5K - - = - 8,158 = - 8,158
Issue of new ordinary BITHLER (1)
shares (note 21) 174,362 559,919 - - - - - 734,281
Transaction costs attributable BT I 2 A 58 5 A
to issue of new ordinary shares - (11,043) - - - - - (11,043)
Capital reduction (Note 21) EARHIL (HaE21) (55,251) = 55,251 = = = = =
At 30 April 2016 REZF—ARENA=1H 180,501 696,688 95,726 12,310 8,158 260 (244,806) 748,846
Loss for the year A EER - - - - - - (55,150)  (55,150)
Other comprehensive AR HCM 2 T B 52
expense for the year - - - - - (50) - (50)
Total comprehensive expense AR AT B S A
for the year - - - - - (50)  (55,150) (55,200
Forfeiture of share options BT A 1 - - - - (57 - 57 -
At 30 April 2017 REF—LENA=+H 180,501 696,688 95,726 12,310 8,101 219 (299,899) 693,646
Notes: KAt

(a) Contributed surplus at 1 May 2015 represents the excess of the (a)
net assets of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued as consideration. On 29 February 2016,
immediately after the share consolidation as disclosed in note 21 (ii),
the par value of the ordinary shares of HKS$0.32 each is reduced
to HK$0.08 each by cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent of
HKS$0.24 each of the consolidated shares. The amount is credited
to the contributed surplus.

(b) Capital redemption reserve represents the excess of the (b)
consideration paid for repurchase of the Company’s ordinary
shares over the par value of respective repurchased shares.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEBESRE

For the Year Ended 30 April 2017 #&% =% — L4 H =+ H L4

2017 2016
—L4E “E-RNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEWH
Loss before taxation I Bt i s 15 (62,444) (1,054)
Adjustments for: i A
Interest income FLE WA (1,439) (6)
Interest on bank and other borrowings SRAT Je HoAth 48 52 2 F 5 1,122 1,099
Depreciation of property, plant and VE R S & P
equipment 1,986 4,623
Net fair value loss on derivative ik Al T H 2 00 e s 8 R
financial instrument - 153
Net fair value loss (gain) on financial N RAEFE AR 18 2 & RlE = N Sl
asset at FVTPL Jes 8 (i ) 43 3] 59,379 (52,031)
Allowance for inventories 17 BB 1A 423 386
Equity-settled share-based payment Je 74 45 DA M9 oy BE R 2 A5 3 B 3
expenses - 8,158
Gain on disposal of property, plant and & ¥ 3 ~ ##5 K sl M 2 i 4 75 5
equipment, net - (262)
Impairment loss on property, plant and )2 ~ B &% S 3%t 2 W (A 15 18
equipment - 23,100
Operating cash outflows before KT A S i 2
movements in working capital AR08 B (973) (15,834)
Increase in inventories A7 & Hm (9,996) (1,625)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5y B At JEE e 5k TEL3E (196,645) (223,695)
Decrease (increase) in deposits i 4 KR 3 Iﬁ{ﬂi ( )
and prepayments 644 (962)
Increase (decrease) in trade B Gy B LA R A R TE B 0 (e 2b)
and other payables 1,878 (2,136)
Decrease in deposits and e 4z X ME w22 I
accrued expenses 478) (1,622)
Increase in listed equity securities T AR R 2 B (183,073) (32,183)
Cash used in operations 2848 T 3 4 (388,643) (278,057)
Income tax paid SRR G (1,236) (1,501)
Interest paid E AT AR 1,122) (1,099)

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING BEEEI B &EH
ACTIVITIES (391,001) (280,657)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HAaBlaieg

For the Year Ended 30 April 2017 #& % _F— L4MH =1+ H IL4F R

2017 2016
— L4 RN
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T#5 7T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES P& R
Interest received SR LEIS! 819 6
Advances of in loan receivables JRE i B K i"‘ i (80,000) =
Purchase of property, plant and I B ) 3 R TRkl
equipment (11,662) (10,732)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant 8 472 - B 45 )%
and equipment % A BT A5 - 262
Payment on settlement of derivative 45 BT AR B D BLAS R
financial instrument = (L,315)
Acquisition of unlisted equity securities Y% IE b i B A 75 % (40,000) =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING P& B P Bl & J
ACTIVITIES (130,843) (11,779)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il ¥ 35 B
Proceeds from issue of shares BEAT R 2 I A5 B H = 734,281
Transaction costs attributable to BEAT B 0y 2 A 22 5 AR
issue of share - (11,043)
New bank borrowings raised oG ERAT A B 203,382 211,682
Repayment of obligations under A Rl A B R A
finance leases (445) (215)
Advance from a director — %3 2GR - 43,180
Repayment to a director BT —HESF = (43,821)
New trust receipt loans raised B 815 T U B B K - 5,786
Repayment of trust receipt loans B 785 R B = (10,432)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING il 3 B A B 4
ACTIVITIES 202,937 929,418
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN Bi& R %R Bl 4 HH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (WA ) 88 a #E (318,907) 636,982
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ##Z B & K% H
BEGINNING OF YEAR H4E&HHE 641,668 4,686

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT &2 ¥4 K%
END OF YEAR H4E&HHE
Representing bank balances and cash T8 ERAT &S R S B 322,761 641,668
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2017 R —BAENA = H IR E

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the “corporate information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”) that is different from the
functional currency of the Company which is United States
dollars (“USD”) as the directors control and monitor the
performance and financial position of the Company by
HKS.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are the
manufacture and sale of integrated circuit leadframes,
heatsinks, stiffeners and related products, securities trading
and investment holding. Details of the principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 32.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

Investment entities: Applying
the consolidation exception

Amendments to
HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 1  Disclosure initiative

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable
and HKAS 38 methods of depreciation and

amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2017 #& % _F— L4MH =1+ H IL4F R

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 “DISCLOSURE
INITIATIVE”

The Group has applied the amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 1 “Disclosure initiative”
for the first time in the current year.

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity need
not provide a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS
if the information resulting from that disclosure is not
material, and give guidance on the bases of aggregating
and disaggregating information. However, the amendments
reiterate that an entity should consider providing
additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in HKFRS is insufficient to enable users of
financial statements to understand the impact of particular
transactions, events and conditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance.

The Group has applied these amendments retrospectively.
Hence, the grouping and ordering of certain notes has
been revised to give prominence to the areas of the
Group’s activities that management considers to be most
relevant to an understanding of the Group’s financial
performance and financial position. Specifically, capital
risk management and information to financial instruments
was reordered to notes 26 and 27. Other than the above
presentation changes, the application of the amendments
to HKAS 1 has not resulted in any impact on the financial
performance or financial position of the Group in these
consolidated financial statements.
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. KERIBraT K AT & W W i
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING P J (T 7 ol B 5 i v 1 )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued) (#8)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSS IN O 2 A 0 9 AR A 20 2 B T B T

ISSUE BUT NOT EFFECTIVE 5 8 I 5 o8 ¥ T

The Group has not early applied the following new and AR 4L [ NI AR FLER TN A 2 0 A B I R
AR 22 AT I BB T A vk B R

amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations that have

been issued but are not yet effective:

V&R

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’ BB R EERL /TR
H9uE
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with HWHBEREELN  EF S RAHR
customers and the related S155% CHiE et
amendments'
HKFRS 16 Leases? T MR EEL T
16%%
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign currency transactions s (B B TS s Ah s 5 KR IR
and advance consideration! mREEEY) SisENECR L
— e B 225%
HKIFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over income tax s (3 R B s i A9 B S 2 T 11
treatments> mREEEY) Jie F2
— i BEER 235
Amendments to Classification and measurement s A MR R DA A AR
HKFRS 2 of share-based payment 258 (BRTA) T Z 5 2
transactions' o K ET !
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial s A R e R JE ] A s B
HKFRS 4 instruments with HKFRS 4 Fa5E (BRI i e R SR A5
Insurance contracts' PR B & #— BF
JRE F A s S
o e R 55958
S T HY
Amendments to Sale or contribution of assets T S e s B
HKFRS 10 and between an investor and its 105 & ANFI A AN
HKAS 28 associate or joint venture? s g At e Al ] & e B i
2858 (BFTA) AL
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative* HWFEHERETE PR
(EFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax & s g nt e Al WK 5 B s 4E HE AR
assets for unrealised losses? 1258 (BHIA) JIEFol, TE
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of investment HWEFHER 5 ) S R
property! 4058 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to FUs ARG HER s BATS R  E
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 cycle® SCHES) —E—UER

BN
24 s
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSS IN
ISSUE BUT NOT EFFECTIVE (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate

HKFRS 9 “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS”
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets, financial
liabilities, general hedge amounting and impairment
requirements for financial assets.

Key requirement of HKFRS 9 which is relevant to the
Group is:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are generally
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
HKEFRS 9 “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS”
(continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement”. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The management of the Group has reviewed the Group’s
financial assets as at 30 April 2017 and anticipates that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9
in the future will result in early provision of credit losses
which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s
financial assets and is not likely to have other material
impact on the results and financial position of the Group
based on an analysis of the Group’s existing business
model.

The above assessments were made based on an analysis of
the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at
30 April 2017 on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that existed at that date. As facts and circumstances may
change during the period leading up to the initial date
of application of HKFRS 9, which is expected to be
1 May 2018 as the Group does not intend to early apply the
standard, the assessment of the potential impact is subject
to change.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
HKFRS 15 “REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15
in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
HKFRS 15 “REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS” (continued)

The directors are in the process of assessing the potential
impacts of HKFRS 15 in respect of the Group’s contracts
with customers, in particular, the impact on the amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s manufacturing activities
that are currently recognised at a point in time. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue should be recognised over time if
the entity’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use and the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for the performance completed up to date.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review. In addition, the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “LEASES”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows. Upon application of
the HKFRS 16 by the Group, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)
HKFRS 16 “LEASES” (continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
an asset and a related finance lease liability for finance
lease arrangement where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on whether the
Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within
the same line item at which the corresponding underlying
assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 30 April 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$76,440,000 as disclosed in note 25. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the
application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application
of new requirements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the financial effect until the directors of the Company
complete a detailed review.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs and the new interpretations will have no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories
in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use for the purposes
of impairment assessment in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
customer returns and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or supply of goods, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as
described below) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE
ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance lease are initially recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognized immediately
in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs (see the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2017 #&% =% — L4 H =+ H L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HKS) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit (loss) before
taxation’ as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2017 #&% =% — L4 H =+ H L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories, in the ordinary
course of business, less all estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables and financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”). The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2017 #&% =% — L4 H =+ H L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets classified as held for trading are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognized
in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned in
the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
deposits, loan receivables, bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy in respect of impairment of financial
assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2017 #&% =% — L4 H =+ H L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance
account.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2017 #& % _F— L4MH =1+ H IL4F R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
accrued expenses and bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2017 #&% =% — L4 H =+ H L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For share option granted to the directors and employees
of the Group, the fair value of their services received
determined by reference to the fair value of share
options granted at the grant date is vested and expensed
immediately with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve).

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following is key source of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Determining whether items of property, plant and
equipment are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment
on an individual basis to the extent possible, which is
the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. If it is not possible to determine the recoverable
amount on individual basis, the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs would
be determined. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. The discount
rate represents the rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates
have not been adjusted. If the actual future cash flows are
less than expected or if there are events or changes in facts
or circumstances which results in a revision of estimated
cash flow, further impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment may arise.

There is no impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment recognised during the year ended 30 April
2017 (2016: impairment loss of HK$23,100,000 has been
recognised in profit or loss). The carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment is HK$27,843,000 (2016:
HKS$17,516,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 12.
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #Z% —F— L4 A =+ H IL4FEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF LOAN
RECEIVABLES

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the loan receivables. Appropriate impairment loss for
estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the amount is not
recoverable.

In determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful
debts is required, the Group takes into consideration
the credit quality, value of collaterals and likelihood
of collection. Specific allowance is only made for the
loan receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is
recognised on the difference between the carrying amount
of loan receivables and the present value of estimated
future cash flow discounted using the original effective
interest rate. Where the actual future cash flows are less

than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 30 April 2017, the carrying amount of loan
receivables is HK$ 80,620,000.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable
for goods sold by the Group to external customers less
sales returns and discounts.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”),
for the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on the location of customers.

Based on location of the customers, the customers of the
Group are mainly located in the United States of America
(the “USA”), Hong Kong, Europe, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), Philippines, Malaysia, Singapore
and Thailand. Customers located in other countries
have been aggregated into a single reportable segment as
these operating segments do not individually meet the
quantitative thresholds as set out in HKFRS 8.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 285 A A

For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL 5. BEBEEMBER (H)
INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) s E R (4
Segment revenues and results Vg L& WE S
The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and DUTR B A 4 8 4% m 3t o BB 2 SRR I
results by reportable segment: SEH AT

Turnover Segment results
BEH 43k A
2017 2016 2017 2016
e Sl viH ZENE Y S i ZE-RE
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
T T T T
The USA B 45,630 60,048 290 (2,149)
Hong Kong it 4,248 2,286 27 (83)
Europe B 3,637 3,301 3 (109)
The PRC i 101,279 99,122 646 (3,211)
Philippines FHE 31,015 49,298 198 (1,644)
Malaysia AT 35,963 21,322 29 (705)
Singapore AN 14,877 9,419 95 (311)
Thailand Z 30| 26,906 27,453 171 (907)
Reportable segment total [ &V 263,555 272,249 1,679 (9,119)
Other countries oA B K 23,562 21,172 201 (1,007)
287,117 293,421 1,880 (10,126)
Eliminations ek (6,398) (6,400) = =
Group’ s turnover and AL B R
segment results itiE 280,719 287,021 1,880 (10,126)
Depreciation of property, ER TS
plant and equipment Yk (1,986) (4,623)
Net gain on disposal of property, & ##H K
plant and equipment i M 2 Wi A VR A = 262
Net fair value loss on MESMTEZARHE
derivative financial instrument SR RER - (153)
Net fair value (loss) gain on A REFI AR Z
financial asset at FVTPL SREEANE
(518 ) W di AR (59,379) 52,031
Impairment loss of property, VEME ST
plant and equipment Z W EE R = (23,100
Equity-settled share-based i 7 4 2 DA e A
payment expenses EY AN B = (8,158)
Unallocated interest income For B S A 1,439 6
Unallocated corporate expenses o Ei B L (3,276) (6,094)
Interest on bank and other AT B HAMAEE
borrowings Z IR (1,122) (1,099)
Loss before taxation GRG0 (62,444) (1,054)
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #Z% —F— L4 A =+ H IL4FEE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (continued)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued)

Included in the USA and PRC reportable segments are
revenue from inter-segments of HK$6,328,000 (2016:
HK$5,571,000) and HK$70,000 (2016: HK$829,000)
respectively.

The accounting policies of the operating segment are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment profit represents the profit from each segment
without allocation of corporate expenses which include
directors’ remuneration, depreciation expenses, net gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment, net fair value
loss on derivative financial instrument, net fair value (loss)
gain on financial asset at FVTPL, impairment loss of
property, plant and equipment, equity-settled share-based
payment expenses, interest income on bank deposits/loan
receivables and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 285 A A

For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL 5.
INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

BREE R BER (4)
vigi 3¢ NE )

Segment assets 43 B & B
The follows is an analysis of the Group’s assets by DUTR £ A 4 [ 4% BT 3 o0 &6 BT #) 43
reportable segment: Z 5T Hr
2017 2016
—EF L& ZERF
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T# THTT
The USA e 10,534 11,056
Hong Kong it 490 175
Europe W 23 874
The PRC Gl 23,920 27,776
Philippines FHE 4,942 8,568
Malaysia F& A VP 5E 4,882 2,467
Singapore N3 2,937 1,299
Thailand e 3,312 5,225
Reportable segment total IR & aati¥ s 51,040 57,440
Other countries HoAtb IR 5% 4,012 3,936
55,052 61,376
Unallocated 43 Bic
Property, plant and equipment 2 - B 4 I kA 27,843 17,516
Inventories w8 41,503 31,930
Financial asset at FVTPL BAREF ARG S EE 247,908 84,214
Other receivables L fth R i Kk I 4,283 8,816
Loan receivables JRE Wi B K 80,620 —
Bank balances and cash SRAT H5 R X B4 322,761 641,668
Deposits and prepayments e 4 I AT R 5,370 6,014
Consolidated total assets SEEEMME 785,340 851,534

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance GG =3 B Tt 1 o =
and allocating resources between segments, all assets are FoOMMAEREGSEELRE SN EAE
& W) 3 - B8 4 Do ak i~ N (E T AE £
A E AR H At iR T~ R K
receivables, loan receivables, deposits and prepayments and K e A R TEAS R - DA SR AT A R KX
bank balances and cash. B4 o

allocated to operating segments other than property, plant
and equipment, financial asset at FVTPL, inventories, other

P 0 4 2 A 0 O A
B R B B R 2 R
30 2 547 B R <

No segment information on liabilities is presented as
such information is not regularly reported to the CODM
for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #Z% —F— L4 A =+ H IL4FEE

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL S.

INFORMATION (continued)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information by location of assets

The Group’s non-current assets of HK$27,843,000 (2016:
HK$17,516,000) are located in the PRC based on physical

location of assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

BB W ER (4

5y W ERE (#8)

)

5 5 i A M [ 3] 43 2 Hb & R}
A B (3] 2 G BT AR M 3 B ) ) Ay A
Bl 2 JF i B E 5527,843,00045 ¢ (U F

—N4F 117,516,00045 70 ©

HEREFRZEH

A B E 4 BE AL AR 45 B 8 B AL EE10% UL b

contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are ZE P AR R
as follows:
2017 2016
L
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt Tt
Customer A — the USA EFEH—-RE 41,658 50,968
Information about major products A PR 2 B R

The Group is solely engaged in the manufacture and sale

of leadframes, including integrated circuit leadframes,

heatsinks, stiffeners and related products. Since the

information on revenue from external customers for each

A A8 A6 O B AR B ARAE > iR 4R
BFE B 5| SRAE - BN I aR AR K AR B
A Z ST o Hh T VA A B A& 7 i SIS BT
I AP P AR R O A B

product and service is not available, no information related TR 2 B R AT B R o
to major products could be disclosed.
OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS 6. J il e A DA B G il W 2 % s 4
AND LOSSES
2017 2016
“F—La RN
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
Other income Hftb e A
Sales of by-products and scrap Bl i % JEE L8 4,874 5,510
Bank interest income $RAT FILE A 819 6
Interest income from loan receivables 2R H it & 3 2 Il S it A 620 -
Sundry income LT ON 55 14
6,368 5,530
Other gains and losses 3L b Wi £ B M 18
Net gain on disposal of property, S ) 2 - R
plant and equipment A M 2 W i 1 A - 262

262
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7.
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

TAXATION B
2017 2016
—ZE2—L4 TR KA
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T 0 T T
The (credit) charge comprises: ($E %) 2 B4 -
Current tax: B HA B IE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Fp B £ 2E T 45 Bl 1,292 1,352
Deferred tax (note 22) R AE B IE (ff ik22) (8,586) 8,585
(7,294) 9,937

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising from
Hong Kong for the both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiary is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions are calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Fr W6 A A5 B T AR 95 47 B 2 Ak B SR B R
I 52 B #816.5% w54

Fh 7 A% 4 7S T I 4 3% S S A o E
At B RR A ik P o Sl I g R A5 B
P i #84 -

MR35 A B A 2 BT A5 Bl IE (T4 26 7 15 Bl
) B A TSR BRG] B &
FAE—H— H AL > o B g A 7 2 B R
F425% o

Ay w3k B R E AR 2 B TE 4 A B Rk
[ ER T S
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #Z% —F— L4 A =+ H IL4FEE

7. TAXATION (continued)

The tax (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to

the loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

ﬁﬁ I'E

AR FERLIE (46 9) 32 BRAR & 1H 45 e H
iy 4 17 K A5 3R T 51 B B T s 48 2 3 IR 4n
T

2017 2016
S S —E R
HK$’000 HK$’000

T 0 Tt

Loss before taxation o Bl il B 15 (62,444) (1,054)

Tax at Hong Kong Profits 575 s B A5 BB %£16.5%

Tax rate of 16.5% AR ZBUIH (10,303) (174)

Tax effect of expenses not AN H] 0B B S

deductible for tax purpose Z B 265 729

Tax effect of income not TFE AR B

taxable for tax purpose 2 B (22) (45)
Tax effect of non-allowable 7 2E TS 2 A AT B 4R

losses of offshore operation (note a)  ZBLHS 2 (Mfita) 810 3,897
Tax levied on the PRC processing T v B 0 2 PRl 2 BLIE (Bt b )

arrangement (note b) 1,292 1,352
Tax effect of tax losses not R FRBLHS 18 2 BLES 5

recognised 694 4,191
Tax effect of utilisation of tax HE ) DA o e RRBL S i 4R 2

losses previously not B R 2

recognised 30) (13)

Tax (credit) charge for the year AAEERLIE (HK%) S (7,294) 9,937

Notes: Bt -

(a) A Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary entered into a (a) — [ 7 A v o M sk Sz 22 B g A w) B —
processing arrangement with a PRC entity, as such, 50% of fi] e [ B B8 T 5L 22 PR G R
such subsidiary’s manufacturing taxable profit or tax loss 7 A AR EE JUT A5 R RRUBG ViR R o B TE IS 4E
were offshore nature and not subject to Hong Kong Profit Z.50% T &g e e R R EL U ZH BN A s
Tax. AR

(b) Being the PRC Enterprise Income Tax levied on the (b) 7 A5 4 [ AR B P B %2 BE S AT 22wk

processing fee paid by the Group under the PRC
processing arrangement.

i T2 ol v B A SRR L -
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

8. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 8. AR EH
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging the AAEFERGHE O ER FHIIEE ¢
following items:

2017 2016
—_EF L& ZE N
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Staff costs (Note (i) & B A (Mt it )
Directors’ emolument M S 2,570 10,302
Salaries and allowances of other staff HAh{E & () F 4 S HERG 74,109 85,607
Retirement benefit scheme HoAh 4 S 1) 2R R4 1 5T E A3
contributions of other staff 5,406 6,646
82,085 102,555
Repair and maintenance expenses MM R R B 3 13,265 13,405
Allowance for inventories 17 B
(included in raw materials (FEA BT A I 44 ) B3 A6 &)
and consumables used) 423 386
Auditor’ s remuneration %% B i P 45 1,180 1,100
Interest on obligation under Pl A R
finance lease Z F B 42 16
Interest on borrowings &5 2 A B 1,080 1,083
Operating lease rentals in BEZ REHLAMEE
respect of premises 10,862 11,388
Note: Wak
(i) Directors’ emoluments and the equity-settled share-based (1) B 551157 B R B S5 I 4 R B A A DA
payment expenses as disclosed in note 11 are included in By 7 BB 2 ST AL S B R

the above staff costs. B R o
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10.

ok o B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2017 #Z% —F— L4 A =+ H IL4FEE

LOSS PER SHARE 9. 15 It js 1
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share AN FI A N HE AL 1Y 5 B B AR 4 T o
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BT T 5 Bg R A
following data:
2017 2016
—ZF—tE —F-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T #: T
Loss for the year AN A N A AR K
attributable to the owners ek e 48 RE A 2 4 i 18
of the Company for the
purposes of basic and
diluted loss per share (55,150) (10,991)
2017 2016
NG Sl 2D RN
Weighted average number F LA g B A A T
of ordinary shares e T M 1 A
for the purposes TIREST- 35 B
of calculating basic and
diluted loss per share 2,256,265,322 367,901,031

The computation of loss per share for both years does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options as their exercise would result in a decrease in loss
per share.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share for
the year ended 30 April 2016 has been adjusted for share
consolidation on 29 February 2016 and open offer on
6 April 2016.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
30 April 2017 (2016: nil). The directors of the Company
do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 30 April 2017 (2016: nil).

10.

w A aZ IR AF R A 1 s 18 Ry 3 40 B
AN T 1 AR AT (8 Y S SRR A AT B UL - TS
R A7 fo i s e o S B IR s 1R D o

FMBE T NENA=+H IE4FER
T BB K R R - W AR
“E-ANF AT HZIRG A B R
TR AR AN H R B TR
B SRR -

JBe X5,
ARFRBE ~F —LWA =+ A ILF
W S 40 U A o O 4 £ 7 I (%
NI E) AR AEFFRERWE
“FE— LA = H LR RS (=
FNEE) -
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

11. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11. #HRATSMKYME/ R H

EMOLUMENTS/EMPLOYEES’ ) T 2
EMOLUMENTS
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S A B AT AR Y 4
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten (2016: 7 MEMST T8 (ZF—RFE:N\H)
eight) directors were as follows: B0l RS I
Non-
executive
Executive directors director Independent non-executive directors
(note vii) (note viii) (note ix)
WiTES FUGEF Bk UnES
(Hitvii) (Mtitvii) (Hiztix)
Phen Wong
Li Hoi Ping Tung Ka Lok Wong How Lee  Chu Chun Yau Chung
Tung Lok Patrick  Siu Ching Andrew ~~ WaiMan  SzeMing  Kwok Wan ~ OnFranco  Chi Hang Hoi Yan Total

ZR% AU HINF RRE HEX (311 ZHE KI5 B fF R Ay
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$000  HKS$'000  HKS$000  HKS$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
T T T Tt T Tt THL THL THL THL THL

(note 1) (note 1) (note iii) (note iv) (note ) (note vi)
(i) (i) (W) (BEiv) (i) (Hitvi)
017 I
Fees e 122 - - 137 180 90 90 7 100 66 860
Other emoluments HibM s
Salaries and B4 R baEA
other benefits - 1,485 144 - - - - - - - 1,629
Retirement benefit RARER AT 8
schemes contribution 3 - 4 1 - - - - - - - 81
122 1,559 151 137 180 90 90 7 100 66 2,570
2016 ZENE
Fees e 132 - - - 181 250 250 34 87 - 934
Other emoluments H b4
Salaries and other benefits  #r 4 R LMAE A - 1,485 132 - - - - - - = 1,617
Retirement benefit N
schemes contribution 3 - T4 1 - - - - - - - 81
Equity-settled e 45 B AR
share-based payment BERZ TR 5,886 1,784 - - - - - - - - 7,670

6,018 3343 139 - 181 250 250 34 87 = 10,302
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11.

ok o B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2017 #Z% —F— L4 A =+ H IL4FEE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS/EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

i. Mr. Wong Ka Lok Andrew was appointed as executive
director on 5 October 2016.

ii. Mr. Wong Wai Man was resigned as non-executive director
on 30 June 2017.

1l Mr. How Sze Ming was retired as independent non-executive
director on 8 September 2016.

iv. Mr. Lee Kwok Wan was retired as independent non-executive
director on 8 September 2016.

V. Mr. Chu Chun On Franco was appointed as independent
non-executive director on 15 September 2016.

vi. Ms. Chung Hoi Yan was appointed as independent
non-executive director on 15 November 2016.

vii. The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
for the services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.

Viii. The Non-Executive Director’s emoluments shown above
were for the services as director of the Company.

iX. The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were for the services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Li Tung Lok (“Mr. Li”) is also the Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosure above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

The emoluments payable to directors of the Company as
approved by the board of directors on the recommendation
of the remuneration committee, are having regarded
to their individual duties and responsibilities with the
Company, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market conditions.

During the years ended 30 April 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

11.

W R AT AR/ R AW
M (4

g B AT AR I 2 (%)
i

i WRPSEER T —ANE+ALAE
ZERYPATES -

ii. WEEER - F—LFEANH=1TH
B 25 JF AT 3 SR A o

iii. BB AR - NFEIANHR
AE 48 37 FF AT 3 B A o

iv. 2R RN S FE—ANESLANHB
AT 98 5 AT HE B A o

V. RBESRAER —F—NELATHEA
RN RS E AT E D o

Vi, FEHB L LR - RNE+—H+ I
H AT 5 B S IE BUATEE S -

vii.  ESCHTR TS AT I A B N A K
7S 5 ) = "L ) O 5 T o

viii.  ESCHTR TG R AT B AT A N R
= A0 R 5 P <2 o

ix. b SO R T 57 I AT AR A A
5 114 R 5 I

2[R ge e ([ZE504 ) IR B AR 8 |l A7 I
R b ochh FE U AR A AT B iRk
5 T 4 o

HE A A% W 3 3 2 B G A8 R N A%
F A2 B 2 BB B ~ A7 S 38 T L v
B Wi O > 58 & B8 1 i 2 e
SR EE A

RBEE_F-EFER_F - R~FOA
= H R R AR E S E A SR AT
A AR T R A 4R B 2 R =
S A 2 R W 2 4% R AR 7 A T Al £
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Ao o B 5 A M

For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS/EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included one (2016: two) executive director of the
Company, whose emolument is included above. The
aggregate emoluments of the remaining four (2016: three)
highest paid individuals are as follows:

WA R AT AR/ R R
M4 (%)

e 5L iy v 4

A EHMA LA -4 (ZF—N
FEW L) AN FATESE K4 E 5
B R4 (ZFE—N4F: =4) &
TR 3 PN N 2 P 4 AR AR AN R

2017 2016
L RN
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Salaries and other benefits S 4 S LAt AR 3,466 3,166
Retirement benefits schemes AR R A A ) 4k R
contribution 113 78
Equity-settled share-based JBe A 45 58 DA 3 7 R
payment expense ZAS B 3 - 29
3,579 3,273
Their emoluments were within the following bands: 18 55 2 T 42 A °F- T 51 417
2017 2016
—E L RN
Number of Number of
employees employees
e B A\ % fE B A%
HK$nil - HK$1,000,000 Z —1,000,000% 7 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%5 75— 1,500,000% 7T 3 2
4 3

During the years ended 30 April 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals (including directors and employees)
as an inducement to join the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

REBEE_F—-LtFERE_F—-NFNA
=+ B AL H N C AT SN T
hEAREHFMAL (BFHERERER) 2
P <5 > 1 2% o S A 4 1 S T A
HH -
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For the year ended 30 April 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. W3~ BN Bk i
Furniture, Moulds,
fixtures toolings and  Construction
Leasehold and Motor Plant and production in
improvements equipment vehicles machinery films progress Total
TH-
il iR E Hak  THARERE
LIES 3! &L ] i i f g R ERIHE L
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Ttk Tl T il Tl Tl Tl Tl
COST A
At 1 May 2015 REZ—AERA—H 46,238 14974 3,157 565,876 69,137 9,841 709,223
Additions RE 119 336 1,464 6,507 3,770 - 12,196
Disposal ik - - (1,827) - - = (1,827)
At 30 April 2016 REZE=REMA=TH 46,357 15,310 2,794 572,383 72,907 9,841 719,592
Additions HE 269 1,197 651 7,687 2,509 = 12,313
Disposal 4 - (44) - - - = (44)
Written off i - - - (428.800) - S (428,800)
At 30 April 2017 RZZ—LENA=TH 46,626 16,463 3445 151,270 75,416 9,841 303,061
ACCUMULATED ZitHiE R
DEPRECIATION A
AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1 May 2015 R-Z—A%ERA—A 40,600 14,468 2,765 558,813 59,534 - 676,180
Provided for the year  A4F 1,256 263 262 1,556 1,286 = 4,623
Eliminated on disposals i & k& = - (1,827) - - - (1,827)
Impairment ifE 3,635 - - 9,703 9,762 - 23,100
At 30 April 2016 REZZ—AEMA=1H 45491 14,731 1,200 570,072 70,582 = 702,076
Provided for the year  Z4E 172 315 450 782 267 = 1,986
Eliminated on disposals i Rk #4 - (44) - - = = (44)
Written off i - - - (428,800) - - (428,800
At 30 April 2017 RZZ—LENA=TH 45,663 15,002 1,650 142,054 70,849 - 275,218
CARRYING VALUES e ff
At 30 April 2017 RZZ—LENA=TH 963 1,461 1,795 9,216 4,567 9,841 27,843
At 30 April 2016 REZZ-AEMA=1H 866 579 1,594 2311 2,325 9,841 17,516
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13.

Ao o B 5 A M

For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. P2k BR45 Rt (%)
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are a2 AR R TE E TG DA AR s
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following useful HESZ DL BT AR A ST AR 4T 8
lives:
Leasehold improvements 8 years &Y E 41 84F
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 — 8 years AR ~ 2 B T el S4F —84F
Motor vehicles 5 years RE 54F
Plant and machinery 6 — 12 years 1 e B R A 64F — 124F
Moulds, toolings and production films 6 years LA TR KA ERIKR 64F
The net book value of the Group’s motor vehicles includes 74K [ VR B 2 HR T VA R A B AR B Al
an amount of HK$1,624,000 (2016: HK$1,402,000) in EHERAZEELG24,000% T (—%F
respect of assets held under finance leases. — 754 11,402,000) ©
At the end of the reporting period, the directors of AR 0T T 4 RORE > AN R S AR AR
the Company conducted a review of the Group’s plant [ 2 A 2 B A AT A% I e i L R
and machinery and decided to write off the cost and A R R TR ELR A 2 A
accumulated depreciation of HKS$428,800,000 for those A TS B AR e 2 T T 5428,800,0007
plant and machinery which has been fully depreciated in JGe
previous years and no longer in use.
At the end of the reporting period, in the view of operating A R T A4 RO A B SE T 2 R
loss of manufacturing business, the directors of the G ANFEEOHAREE Y E - H
Company conducted a review of the Group’s property, i LA T R R E L
plant and equipment and determined that there is no A =+ H kAR ((F
impairment recognised during the year ended 30 April 2017 — 7N AF ¢ A 48 A i R (H 5 4523,100,000
(2016: impairment loss of HK$23,100,000 was recognised W TT o JR I 2 A T B IR 2 T
in profit or loss as the recoverable amount of certain g o] SRR AR P LR (R o AR W) -
property, plant and equipment were lower than their B 45 B R A 2 w] i el O (R Ao (B I
carrying value). The recoverable amounts of the property, B A B P B v R 2 iR ) TS
plant and equipment of the Group have been determined 5 T AE F AR Pl 5 E R E o i M 325 2 1 Il
on an individual basis to the extent possible, which is YE i 2 T i T SR B 7R E P IR B 4
the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value FE A2 B 2 T i e] O o R R A
in use. If it is not possible to determine the recoverable fEAE 2 B B F515.5% (R — N4
amount on individual basis, the recoverable amount of the 14.6%) °
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs would be
determined. The discount rate used in measuring the value
in use was 15.5% (2016: 14.6%) per annum.
INVENTORIES 13. #&
2017 2016
—E L RN
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T 0 T
Raw materials and consumables JEAE L 12 FE 26,538 20,014
Work in progress 2 B 12,414 8,890
Finished goods BRE 2,551 3,026
41,503 31,930
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #Z% —F— L4 A =+ H IL4FEE

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/ 14, B 5 B oAb HE WOk 34 B
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS % I
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES B 5 B I fib M ek K
2017 2016
—“ZF—tE T -AREF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T#IT
Trade receivables & 5y ME WS IH 55,145 61,469
Less: Allowance for bad and Tk R RR B A
doubtful debts 93) 93)
55,052 61,376
Other receivables Al sk IR 4,283 8,816
59,335 70,192
The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to KEMBTESEF 284 T30%8
90 days to its trade customers. The following is an aged 90 H o it 37 4 11 45 T S > 7 5 I i S TE 41
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for bad and s S5 390 B 438 45 Je 3% 22 H HA 2 41 > BE R 40
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at the Wrtn T

end of the reporting period:

2017 2016

—F—LH AN

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

Tt TH#IT

Within 30 days 30H A 17,736 23,076
Between 31 and 60 days 31260H 22,956 22,499
Between 61 and 90 days 61%290H 12,744 8,776
Over 90 days 90H Lk |k 1,616 7,025

55,052 61,376
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will
apply an internal credit assessment policy to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and define credit limits
by customer. Management closely monitors the credit
quality of trade receivables. Included in the Group’s trade
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HKS$17,612,000 (2016: HK$20,425,000) which
are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss, as there are no significant
changes in credit quality of these debtors and the amounts
are still considered recoverable based on historical payment
experience or such balances were subsequently settled by
debtors. For trade receivables that were neither past due
nor impaired, there is no significant changes in credit
quality and no recent history of default. The Group does
not hold any collateral or credit enhancements over all
trade receivables.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors,
presented based on due date of respective invoice, which
are past due but not impaired:

14.

B 5 B 3 fib HE K I ¥ 4 B TR
153k (48)
B 5 B F Al RE ROk L (4
A 2 4N AT AT B & A AR 4R B S AT A
HEEFZBORUGIZ®EEF 2 EEHE
%ﬁﬂﬂ&%gﬁzﬁﬁﬁ & e %
VEREGBRREBEZ FREER A4
& ) I ik TE A5 R P B4 IR T 48 (E
17,612,000%5 76 ( — 2 — /N 4F 1 20,425,000
W0 S H O B ) > M K IE >
A U S B AR I 2 A R 3R I A K el
5 > FLAR 45 3 A AN R AR B - 5% 55 A TH AT
FR A TR ] S AT B 4G R O H AR B A
N &5 > PRI A 45 18I A 36 Ut RS i ek T 4
&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ oA 3 H 4 3ok (H & 5
E TN iR = N iy N R a W
@%E,$%@I%%EHQ%EW$@
F5 A AT o] 4 H7 i =0 58 A5 B R A

7 01 {EL 51 90 3 2 B 5 B SRR T AR
HABR B LB A 2 5 2 WRE AT AR

2017 2016

e Sl i RN

HK$’000 HKS$’000

Tt T o

Within 90 days 90 H 4y 17,474 19,455
Over 90 days 90H A | 138 970
17,612 20,425
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For the year ended 30 April 2017

WEZF— LA = H IR

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)
TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group has arrangement with a bank to transfer to
the bank its contractual rights to receive cash flows from
certain trade receivables. The arrangement is made through
transferring those trade receivables, without discounting,
to the bank on a full recourse basis. Specifically, if the
trade receivables are not paid after the due date, the bank
has the right to request the Group to pay the unsettled
balance. As the Group has not transferred the significant
risks and rewards relating to these trade receivables, it
continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the trade
receivables amounting approximately HK$41,604,000 (2016:
HK$48,652,000) and has recognised the cash received on
the transfer as collateralised bank borrowings (see note 19)
of approximately HK$33,158,000 (2016: HK$37,228,000)
as at 30 April 2017.

These financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

14.

$U 5 e 30 Atb HE ek D, He 4 B T
143k (4E)

ol 08 4 O

A 4 E) B — ] SR AT i 5T & HE > DA ik
A 25T & 5 e Uk T8 B4 A A
HE I Wl 8 T % AR AT o sZ K HE B R R
P A8 % ME ) SR AT SR (T NG A RS B ) 5% 5
2 Ty JRE AT Sk T AE HY o 4 R > i 3% 5
S JE W 3k TE I o iR 21 A B A& S A > HI R
17 K A A B2 R A 4 8 S AT R B A & Bk o
FY A A A [H] Sl i ot B S A5 B 5 R AR
TE A B 00 =K R B & el s A = F — b
FEWH=+H HBEHERE S kK
TE 119 4 358 B T {H 4941,604,0003 o€ ( =%
— NAE 148,652,000 75) - 3l B i (At 58
17 g ) B 4 e B VR A HE R AT (5 4 (R
B 5E19) £933,158,000% 76 ( =T — /N 4F -
37,228,000% 78) °

% S 4 T A E A O AR R A R ) 2 A
o BB IR DR B A -

2017 2016
“EkE CER AR
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#T T #E T
Carrying amount of L B 7 < MR M E
transferred assets 41,604 48,652
Carrying amount of A B A AR 2 iR T A
associated liabilities (33,158) (37,228)
Net position Ei= S 8,446 11,424
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 3 & B WA K

Included in the Group’s deposits is an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$2,395,000 (2016: HK$1,895,000)
denominated in RMB, the foreign currency of respective
group entities.

7R 4E ] 2 4% 4 v A 4 AREE 492,395,000 7T
(& — 754 1 1,895,000% 70) 2 #IHE » &
DU B (AH B SE B R 2 AN ) 5T -
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

15.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTPL

%2 RGN 2 2 4 ik B

2017 2016

S Sl s 8 e SN

HK$’000 HKS$’000

T# T T

Listed equity securities (note a) LTI S (M ita) 217,542 84,214
Unlisted equity securities (note b) FE EHIRARES (HiEb) 30,366 =
247,908 84,214

Notes:

(a)

(b)

These investments represent equity securities listed in Hong
Kong and are classified as held for trading investment.

In September 2016, Henghua Global Fund SPC, an
exempted company incorporated with limited liability
under the laws of the Cayman Islands (the “Fund Entity”)
created a segregate portfolio, Henghua Global New
Opportunity Fund SP (the “Fund”). In October 2016, the
Group has subscribed 40,000 class R shares of the Fund.

The Fund has two classes of shares, i.e. class P and class
R. Class P share has a priority over class R share, whereas
class R share could only be redeemed by the holder of
class R share with the following conditions: 1) if the fair
value of the net asset per class R share will not be lower
than the fair value of the net asset per class P share; and 2)
after the lock-up period, which is equal to a period of 12
months commencing on the issue of such class R share, i.e.
October 2017.

As at 30 April 2017, 40,000 class R shares of the Fund held
by the Group represented 100% of the total outstanding
issued shares of the Fund and 0.1% of the authorised
share capital of the Fund Entity. The Fund mainly holds
equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The directors of
the Company expected that the Group’s investment in the
Fund will be recovered within one year from the end of the
reporting period.

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the
Group has control over the Fund Entity based on whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the Fund Entity unilaterally. In making the
judgement, the directors of the Company considered that 1)
the directors of the Fund Entity are solely responsible for
the overall management and control of the Fund Entity;
2) the directors of the Fund Entity may, at any time and
without notice to, or the consent of, the holders of class
P and class R shares of the Fund, create and designate
additional classes of share in respect of the Fund; 3) both
holders of class P and class R shares of the Fund Entity
have no voting rights (except in relation to a modification
of the rights attaching to the respective class of share) nor
rights to appoint or remove directors of the Fund Entity;
and 4) the fund manager, the Fund Entity and its directors
are independent third parties to the Group. After the above
assessment, the directors of the Company concluded that
the Group has no rights to direct the relevant activities of
the Fund Entity and therefore the Group has no control
over the Fund Entity.

i

(a)

(b)

2SR T B R A E E B RE
b T A 7 5 o

A & — 754 JUH > Henghua Global
Fund SPC (R4 B & 1 5 5 0] 5% i
SR AARAR) (THESEH])
% o 8 L 4% & 4 & Henghua Global
New Opportunity Fund SP ([ 34 ]) o
AR NFETH AEEHC R Z
H 440,000 R AL 1y

%5 A PRI R BB 6y - PR
135 R KU =2 A7 (8 S i - Tl R BB
T A TR 2 LR R 445 75 7T I )
RBUB A« 1) 55 e R SR B 1 {2
28 SR AE AR A B TR PR3 4 3
ZRNRME R2)EEM 2 % AR R
RGBT (ZE—tFETH) e
FE A A

A _F—HENH =+ H o AL E R
A W% K 4:40,000/1% R K% M 7y o4 2k 4
Z B ERE BATTESMB My B E#0.1%
ZHEERA -G EE T ER AT L
T B A 5 25 o AR 43 ] S T R 4 [
T W 4 22 A0 T T i o U [H] 46 A IR
A i — 4F A i [E] o

AN T EHARB AL E R TR BT
T 415 4B L 4 0 A0 M B T B 2 B R A
A AE R T A R R e
IR BT RN R ERHBD ) XS
HE>EREaEESHB 2 ABY
) B EMER TR RZES
W SL % 8 A A A 1Y) A 44 T 48 ZE
HR% 4 PR L R B H5 A N Bk 4K
WA R 3) B Hl 2 P LR MK

JI 153 s S RE ) 255 9 41 ) O SRR AT S i 4
RS o4) WG K0 LS
LR AN AR W 2 B SL S =5 o AR
AR A o A O R o AR A A
HE 4 3 L 4 BT 2 AH RS B > A 4R
P e A T < T
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16. LOAN RECEIVABLES

Fixed-rate loan receivables 7E B RE W B K

16.
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HE e £k

2017 2016

= i
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T L
80,620 —

On 29 March 2017, Quality Capital Limited (“Quality
Capital”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the loan agreement with GEO Finance
Limited (“GEO Finance”), an independent third party to
the Group, pursuant to which Quality Capital has agreed
to make available to GEO Finance a loan facility of up
to HK$200,000,000, bearing interest at a rate of 13% per
annum (the “Loan Facility”).

GEO Finance would use the proceeds from any drawdown
of the Loan Facility to solely finance its loans provided
to third party borrowers (the “GEO Loans”) and Quality
Capital would participate in such GEO Loans without
recourse to GEO Finance. Accordingly, for accounting
purpose GEO Finance is considered as an agent of Quality
Capital in this arrangement.

Details of the arrangement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 March 2017.

In April 2017, GEO Finance had drawdown three loans
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$80,000,000
under the Loan Facility and had then on lent to three
independent individual borrowers as GEO Loans, with
collaterals pledged by the relevant borrowers. Such loan
receivable of the Group and GEO Loans are repayable in
January 2018.

As at 30 April 2017, the outstanding principal amount of
loan receivables from GEO Finance was HK$80,000,000.

On 19 May 2017, the directors of the Company announced
that the Company and GEO Finance had mutually agreed
to terminate the Loan Facility and the principal amount of
the loan receivable of HK$80,000,000 and the GEO loans
will continue to be repaid in accordance with the repayment
schedule as agreed with the individual borrowers. In July
2017, the independent individual borrowers have also
re-negotiated with GEO Finance to early repay the GEO
Loans and a repayment schedule for each of the GEO
Loans has been signed up. The loan receivables and GEO
Loans are then repaid by installments and will be repaid in
full by December 2017.

HNoE—LE=HA "+ RAH - ARXAE
EHHE A E M EEARARAA ([WEE
A |) BLAS 42 [ 48 ST 5 = 05 B B R O B
AR ([R5 R B ) 5T 50 835K
o PRI VB AR W] 1 R 5 R B
$2 3t B =5 #£200,000,0007 7T 2 6 2K E
([EERBE ) > H213% 4FEF K5 E -

B 5 7 TS R R KR R IR BT 45 K
TEfB AR B 1 A =05 R AR IR
B (TEHGRTER]) - HMEEAZ
LA BRI R B w7 B B By R T
HERME-F MEFHENTN S &5
W7 5 A B 2 BE T A B E AR
R

ZHFEHFRRARAR - F—LFE =R
“HILRZ A .

LA A R 5y B R B
TR ERRN = EER A RES
80,000,000% 7t » 1% fey B T = 44 %8 52 Rl
INEFON VRN W= 1 KT N
P AR 5 1 47 O o AR 4 [T 1) AT BRI g 4
K G R AR & — N4 — A

% -

—F—LENA=+H > WS 5w B
T BRI R AE 5 R 42 580,000,000 IT ©

R_FE—LFHAHATILH ARG EREE
fiii > AN R KA 5y By BA TS B AH B R B A%
L TR R % R iR R AR 42 %5180,000,000
5 G > SIf7 AR 4 B A BN b 2 3 K
W] R AR R R R F
—LFEEH 8L MG IR B 5 R
Ty B EHT R - AR RER A G R o &
B AS A G R T B K AR R AR KR ] 2 o
JRE Wiz 5 R B R B IRy A B AR 1% F 43 1
g, Wt —F—t4E+  H AR E

iif °

Bl's
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18.
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances held by the Group comprised of bank
deposits which carried prevailing market interest rates
ranging from 0.01% to 0.46% (2016: 0.01% to 0.46%) per
annum. The bank deposits have the original maturity of
three months or less.

Included in the Group’s bank balances and cash is an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$1,496,000 (2016:
HK$2,422,000) denominated in RMB, the foreign currency
of respective group entities.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
DEPOSITS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

17.

18.

WA KBLE

AL H R 2 SRAT A5 B B IS R B AR A T
0.01)E £0.46H (= F — N4 :0.01)E £
0.46)8 ) Z BLAT T B FI S5t E R ERAT A7 K
SRATAE A 2 JR B ) H A = {8 A B 46 RF
] o

AREMMZPITEB IR SO EILEL
1,496,000% 7T ( 2% — 7N 4F © 2,442,000
JC) DA N R W (AH B AR T E R 2 AN )
FHE

B 55 B JC Al B A ok S DA Be 452 4 B

R it ¢
5 M A TS i 0 ] 4 T
H 180 2 91 2 B B 4 7 0 -

2017 2016
—E L RN
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T# T#5 7

Trade payables B 5 e AT KA
Within 30 days 30H A 9,528 7.834
Between 31 and 60 days 31260H 4,861 4,291
Between 61 and 90 days 61290H 3,384 2,467
Over 90 days 90H LA I 9,529 8,974
27,302 23,566
Other payables L Ath A B E 7,161 9,019
34,463 32,585

The credit period on purchases of goods is ranging from 30
to 90 days.

Included in the Group’s trade and other payables and
accrued expenses are aggregate carrying amounts of
approximately HK$12,281,000 (2016: HK$14,858,000) and
HK$13,750,000 (2016: HK$15,425,000) denominated in
RMB, the foreign currency of respective group entities,
respectively.

W& 25 &M A-F30%£90H -

A E 2 E G K H At B AT A DL R RE
w2 AL 45 B A2 (E 4 7l 912,281,000
WL (L — N 4E 114,858,000 o0) K
13,750,000%5 7C ( & — 75 4 1 15,425,000
W 0) & LN R M (A BE 45 13 B 1 2 A0 )
Al E -
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WEZF—LENH =1 HIRERE

19. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

19. 847 B I fifif £

2017 2016
—E L& TR N
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T# THTT
Collateralised bank borrowings A HEHRERAT (5 B
(Note a) (Wfzta) 33,158 37,228
Borrowing from a director (Note b) —RZEHGE (M7HDb) 75 75
33,233 37,303
Carrying amount shown under B A RIS 2 MR
current liabilities:
Repayable on demand or B SR R — AR R B R
within one year 33,233 37,303

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The collateralised bank borrowings are bank advance from
the factoring of the Group’s trade receivables and carry
interest at USD trade finance rate minus 0.5% per annum
and are repayable within one year but contain a repayable
on demand clause.

The borrowing was advanced from Mr. Li, a director
and a shareholder of the Company and was interest-free
and unsecured. The whole amount of approximately
HK$75,000 (2016: HK$75,000) denominated in RMB, the
foreign currency of respective group entity.

wit

(a)

(b)

AR ERAT i 8 2 RS AR AR R )
e T P A 2 SR AT O A B A B
32 70 | 5 il B A R 30,5 ) 2 A A1) R
FEE o ZHA — 4R A fH R (A 6L W B 6
TR 2 ek o

165 8% F A ) 7 2 S I R 2 e A S
By A 8 K JE A o 42 8 4075,000% T
(= F—7N4E 75,0009 70 ) & DA R
(AF 8 42 BT B 2 A1) RHME -

B/
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

20. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 20. WAEMERIE
LEASES
The Group leased three (2016: two) of its motor vehicles AEEBPEAEHEHEE = (&K
under finance leases. The lease term is 5 years. Interest A ) VROE o AL A AR o A BH T A R
rates underlying all obligations under finance leases are A B AR AE 2 AT G A4 R 2R3.05
ranged at contract rate at 3.05% to 3.75% (2016: 3.75%) JE #3758 (ZF — /N4FE 0 3.75H) o lf 4
per annum. No arrangements have been entered into for 3 B8 SR 4 A 3K R T S AT AT 22 B o

contingent rental payments.

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
I A AL B 45 3k
I A LB £ 3% Z B
2017 2016 2017 2016
—F L “F-NFE ZE b T RFE
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T# THT T# THTT
Amounts payable under R 4 il AR
finance leases: JEAT 2 4% -
Within one year —4E N 534 324 491 282
In more than one and not  — 4 DL L/ 4E
more than two years DN, 534 324 508 293
In more than two and not {4 LA | fi4E
more than five years DA Ay 466 703 456 674
1,534 1,351 1,455 1,249
Less: Future finance charges & : 721K il & % (79) (102) NAREBEH NASEH
Present value of lease LB A 2 Bi(E
obligations 1,455 1,249 1,455 1,249
Less: Amount due for WA 1218 A
settlement FHEE 2
within 12 months SN E)
(shown under A1)
current liabilities) (491) (282)
Amount due for settlement #7121 H 4% 2|
after 12 months W45 2 & # 964 967
AR ] 2l AR B RS DA AN A R
The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured B 2 A HEAEHEAT o

by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.
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21. SHARE CAPITAL 21, JBEAR
Number of shares Nominal value
Rty H i A
2017 2016 2017 2016
G Sl i RN Y S i RN
HK$°000 HK$000
F# T T
Authorised: BE
At beginning of year AR
— Ordinary shares of — I T {0,085 7T
HKS$0.08 each 2 15,000,000,000 1,500,000,000 1,200,000 120,000
Share consolidation (note i) [ An & 0F (M atii) - (1,125,000,000) = =
Capital reduction (note iii) BRI (At = 1,125,000,000 = -
Creation of authorised share RZFE—RE
capital on 29 February 2016 ZAZ+ A
s ik E A - 13,500,000,000 - 1,080,000
At end of year A&
— Ordinary shares of — I T {0.08 % 7T
HKS$0.08 each 2 15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
Redeemable preference B FR T (0.0216 7T
shares of HK$0.02 each 2 V] I e fie
At beginning and end of year TR AR 500,000,000 500,000,000 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRARE:
At beginning of year RAEH)
— Ordinary shares of — B 1 {50.08% 7t
HK$0.08 each 2 2,256,265,322 767,373,549 180,501 61,390
Issue of shares under HRIRE & 31T
placement (note 1) et (At ati) - 153,470,000 = 12,278
Share consolidation (note if) et & 0 (Mt atii) - (690,632,662) = =
Capital reduction (note iii) EAHIW (B i) = = = (55,251)
Issue of shares under B & 817
placement (note 1v) [&eAn (Mt itiv) - 875,000,000 - 70,000
Share issued upon open Litsi Nk g
offer (note v) F&eAn (Mt itv) - 1,151,054,435 = 92,084
At end of year RAE#
— Ordinary shares of — IR T {H0.08% 7T

HKS$0.08 each 2B 2,256,265,322 2,256,265,322 180,501 180,501
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For the year ended 30 April 2017

WE-F—LENA=TA LR

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Issue of ordinary shares by private placements and open
offer

On 2 June 2015, the Company and a placing agent entered
into the placing agreement pursuant to which the placing
agent agreed to place, on a best endeavour basis, to not less
than six independent placees for up to 153,470,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each at a price of HK$0.56
per placing share. The private placement was completed on
16 June 2015.

Share consolidation

On 29 February 2016, every four ordinary shares of par
value of HKS$0.08 each consolidated into one ordinary
share of HK$0.32 each.

Capital reduction

On 29 February 2016, immediately after the share
consolidation as disclosed in (ii) above, the par value
of the ordinary shares of HKS$0.32 each is reduced to
HK$0.08 each by cancelling the paid-up capital to the
extent of HK$0.24 each of the consolidated shares.

Issue of ordinary shares by private placements

On 7 January 2016, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the
placing agent has conditionally agreed to place, on a
best efforts basis, up to 875,000,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.08 each at the placing price of HK$0.32 per
placing share on behalf of the Company to not less than
six placees who and whose ultimate beneficial owners
are independent third parties. The private placement was
completed on 7 April 2016.

Issue of ordinary shares upon open offer

On 6 April 2016, the Company issued 1,151,054,435 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each by way of open offer at
an offer price of HK$0.32 per share, on the basis of five
new ordinary shares for every one share in issue held.

These new shares rank pari passu with other shares in issue

in all respects.

e

JBe AR ()

Wit

®

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

IR AN LG B 2 B 3R A4S B AT ik

AT —HAENH ZH > AR T —
2 Wi B AR RT ST I S T - SR UL > i B
A% B[R] 4 5 Ay L UE ) R D iR S &
M8 7R e N BE 45 i £ 153,470,000 5
J5 T {E0.08 #5 TT 2 58 3 % A > 4 st i 45
10315 4% 250,56 I © 5% JEFA N i & B
R E—RAENHA T ASHEMR-

Bt &

A FE—RAETH ZFJLH -
A 1 TE {H0.08 5 ot 2 % 4 B T3 & 0F £
— B T {EL0. 3235 JC 2 3 4 i

A H) I
ATE—NE_AZ+TIH B L
3C (i) BT 4 2% 2 B0 A DR AR B I
i 2 T E % T 8 B AR AR (4
& F B0y 5E 850.24% 7o) 1M B 4 0,32
5 I HIl 6k % 55 15 0.08 5 T ©

925 38 AL N T B AT 5 T

W F—RE—ALH AR A H—
44 e 5 AR AT 52 B 6 B o R UL AT R
FRBRA W 1 ) J28 4 2 2 Jy R WE 1] AR
LA N WNIE TS &l S
HaAa NABILE =T E RS
875,000,000/ % JiZ i {E0.08¥%5 7T Z i
W > B WL B AE AR 50,328
e ZHAAREE R ZF—AFEN
HEHZEM -

AR 2N bR B B AT 8

A ERNEMHANH AAF A
BH 8% 45 77 S 4% 5 J1R0.321 T 2 ¥
Fe 5 R A — I O 8 AT B4y AT 78 8% ik
B 8 R 2 R EEEAT1,151,054,4350%
A5 I AT EL0. 08 5 78 22 7 ¥ 788 Jit o

7% S5 T JBC A 7R 45 77 T BEHC At £ 88 4T I =
AR [R] A7
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #Z% —F— L4 A =+ H IL4FEE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 22.

At the end of the reporting period and during the year,
deferred tax liabilities (assets) have been recognised in
respect of the temporary differences attributable to the
following:

HE 9 L 5 £ 1%

TS R 2500 D 45 SR I 4 R - S A L
5 T 2 W R 2 R R IR LR A
i (B E) :

Unrealised
gain on Accelerated
investment held tax Tax
for trading depreciation losses Total
FEHERE
ZAEB A M BE i 2 At
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
T T Ti#T Ti#T
At 1 May 2015 WoZF—hEHA—H = 778 (777) 1
Charge (credit) to the profit or loss i fFR (FEA) (#77)

(Note 7) 8,585 (777) 777 8,585
At 30 April 2016 REFE—RNENA=1H 8,585 1 - 8,586
Credit to the profit or loss (Note 7) &F AR (#fit7) (8,585) 1,827 (1,828) (8,586)
At 30 April 2017 RZZF—LEEA=+HA = 1,828 (1,828) =

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of HKS$471,201,000 (2016:
HK$456,098,000) available for offset against future profits.
As at 30 April 2017, deferred tax asset of HK$11,079,000 (2016:
nil) has been recognised and no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining HK$460,122,000
(2016: HK$456,098,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of HK$1,092,000 (2016: HKS$1,193,000) that
will expire within 5 years. Other tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

A i A ] H] &5 TR R AR 4 8 A A SE R )
2 BLH 5 1H471,201,0004 76 ( =& — N
4F 1 456,098,000 o) B A 1E K 8 oK 2R Ui
Flofd = F—H4ENH=+H > EIERIH
EE11,079,0004 0T (T —N4EE)E
e R > T PR 4 72 LB R Al v A A U
St oK T 58 A BE R #5460,122,0009 76 (.
E— 75 4F 1 456,098,000 7T ) 1Y 4E 4E A JH
W E o A E R B TS s 1R AL R AR A E
1 2 85 461,092,000% 70 ( & — N4
1,193,000%5 7T ) o At B 5 fi 85 7T 4% FR HA
o

21
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23.

24.
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For the year ended 30 April 2017

BEZF—LENA =+ L

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 23. FEFEBERY
During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Group’s REE_E—CFEMA =+ H ILFE
repayment of the collateralised bank borrowings of A5 A R T — MR AT 2 B B L
approximately HK$207,502,000 (2016: HK$203,516,000) IR 1T 4 $15 49207,502,00095 76 (- F— K
was offset by the trade receivables transferred to a bank. 1 203,516,000 76 ) 2 A K 57 84T fiF
7 o
During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Group entered PEEZE—LFENH =+ HIEFE, K
into finance lease arrangements in respect of assets with 45 3]l A1 6 B 4 IRF AR A8 (B 49651,0009
a total capital value at the inception of the lease of JC (T — N 4F 1 1,464,000% 00) 2 & &
approximately HK$651,000 (2016: HK$1,464,000). FI 7L il A B 22 HE o
CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 24. %A K& fb 7k ¥
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had R A A RN > AEEEA KRBT ZE
outstanding capital commitments as follows: ARG
2017 2016
—Z—tE ZFAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# 0 T T
Capital expenditure in respect B B 2 A
of acquisition of property, M2 BRI AERTE
plant and equipment SR A W IR R A
contracted for but not ZEA B X
provided in the consolidated
financial statements 1,918 4,198
As at 30 April 2017, GEO Finance had drawdown W _FE—LFEMA =1 H &5 s

HK$80,000,000 of the Loan Facility (recognised as loan
receivables as disclosed in note 16) and therefore had
an outstanding loan commitment of HKS$120,000,000
(“Outstanding Loan Facility”) to GEO Finance in relation
to the Loan Facility. On 19 May 2017, the directors of the
Company announced that the Company and GEO Finance
had mutually agreed to terminate the Loan Facility.

£ 42 R 2Kl 4680,000,000% 7T (# 4 Fff
FE 164 75 1L K TE A R 2 B i k) 5 TR I
B 5 KT B s KRR A R B AT 2
B FOR $5120,000,0003 76 ([ 4 JB 17 £ 3K
) o = F—EHERAATILA AR
) 3 T AR A F) B 5 5 B L A
[i] 7 4% 1E R o
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #Z% —F— L4 A =+ H IL4FEE

LEASE COMMITMENTS 25. MR
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had A R 0 ] A TR B > AN A AR AR L
commitments in respect of premises for future minimum JH R ) 3 ST AT 2 R P R AR B R IH 2 K
lease payments under operating leases, which fall due as A AR A 1 30
follows:
2017 2016
“E—La e AN
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x THTT
Within one year —4ER 12,303 10,817
In the second to fifth year B A
inclusive (ELIEE B W) 47,395 39,276
Over five years R LA 16,742 4,012
76,440 54,105
Leases are negotiated for a term of eight years for certain A T A B 2 A EE R T S A AT
production facilities in the PRC (of which the landlord has AT A\ (ELOA TAREEELHE
given a priority to the Group to renew such lease under A7 B JERH % AH [R] A4 3 B A A T AR
similar terms and conditions of the original lease) and A > W HAE AR EE LS — &
terms of one to two years for other premises with fixed Wi 4F > & H & 2 & 5E -
monthly rentals.
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26. H A MW B4 B

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to equity holders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank and other borrowings disclosed in
note 19, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owner of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and accumulated losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with the issued share capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the issue of
new shares as well as raising new banks/other borrowings
and repayment of existing banks/other borrowings, if

necessary.

A S T BEHC A D e IR AR SR I R
B B R AR > (7] IR 22 28 1 A 5 B R i
P VL E RS NG S SNTE: &

AAE H 2 B AR RN LA U RO (LA Y
AE 194 5% 2 SRAT M HAh £ 5 F1BR BE & )
S [A] B JH H DL R AR 2 B AN A HE
i (A5 CBATIA - il X Rt R -

A F S AR A o Ay AR
w2 — W A F S A A K
SO SR AT B AR BE 2 JEL B, - A £ 1 i A 1
BEAT T Iy LA B 3 4R B R AT A 1 BT
B AR BLAT 8AT LA i 4 (3075 ) 1
- FL R AR LA

123



124

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27.
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

27. &@ITH

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL 4k T H 350
INSTRUMENTS
2017 2016
e Sl i RN
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# 0 T IT
Financial assets 4 & B
At fair value through profit or loss 2N S fE N AR #2
— Held for trading —FHEHRE 217,542 84,214
— Designated at FVTPL — 36 E AR A fEF A 52 30,366 =
Loans and receivables (including AR B JE SR
cash and cash equivalents) (BfHe AERBEEER) 463,243 712,158
Financial liabilities Rl A
Amortised cost 5 A 88,462 91,230
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT S 5 gt 4 B H B B 18O SRE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, financial asset at FVTPL, loan
receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, accrued expenses, obligations under finance
leases and bank and other borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments including
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
in a timely and effective manner. There has been no
significant change to the types of the Group’s exposure in
respect of financial instruments or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

ALz EEGM T HRAHEHE S K HA
FEWCRIA ~ A R HFF AR 2 &M E
R RATHBABE " &
oAt 8 A SR BT - A A R I
Be SRAT B FABAE B o e 55 b TR ZRE1E
7 AR [ B 49 % o B e 26 <l T EL A BR)
2 Ja g 4 T 35 A B (A A B A
25 Ja By K FBEA B A% LB )~ £ L B B O
) A o ] R A % 4 JEL B 2 BOR
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For the year ended 30 April 2017

WEZF—LENH =1 HIRERE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk

)

Currency risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and its
monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in the functional currencies
of respective group entities, which are mainly
HKS or USD. However, the Group has purchases
and expenses transactions which are primarily
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management closely monitors
foreign exchange exposure to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s major foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

27. &WITH (/)
S8 5 ol 4 L H B B BOSR (A)

T 55 ) B
(1) B

ASE T E BN A KR
7~ AR AL S F B A&
ZUIREE M (LTl E TR )
FH{E SR> AL B A EZH LR
(T ANR W) whHE < W& S B X
A2y o A% AR [ B Iy 07 6 6T 57 A B 3B
LR o SR T A B RE B ) B P A
MEE J By AT £ BE % IR A 250 i R R
T

AEHEEUNMEFHHEZ BHE
7 B BB #oE HO 2 MR T (E 40
T

Assets Liabilities
& B =K
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE® b SF-NFE ZELE EFEAF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T 0 T Tt T T
RMB NG 3,891 4,317 26,106 30,358

In addition, at 30 April 2017, the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is also arising
from inter-company receivables due from foreign
operations of approximately HK$500,000 (2016:
HK$500,000), which were not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant group entities.
These inter-company receivables do not form part
of the Group’s net investment in foreign operations.

WA R FE—LEFENA =+
H > A 4 [ 78 T % 2 Hh B R B IR
VR Ui A 2T 2 N A T &S
% #1500,000%5 70 ( =& — N A4F
500,000%5 70) > A B #k HF FE DA AH
BEEEM Y B WeHE - %%
JE Wi ) i 45 6 3l S K A 4E ]
AN ETS 2 ARG — 5 -
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For the year ended 30 April 2017

BEZF—LENA =+ L

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

)

(i1)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s major
sensitivity analysis of a 5% increase and decrease
in HK$ or USD against RMB. 5% (2016: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and the aforesaid inter-company
receivables and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% change in foreign currency exchange
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease
in post-tax loss where the HK$ or USD strengthen
5% against the relevant foreign currency. For a
5% weakening of the HKS$ or USD against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax loss, and the
amounts below would be negative.

Decrease in post-tax loss A BE B B AR s 18 A
for the year
RMB N

27. EWTH ()
S 5 R, gt 4 PR H B B BOOR ()

ﬁii»%mfxx

(i) %ﬂ%(
UK BE 43 AT
I N N TR =T
N R BRI TF B R 5% RE AT AR
RS 5% (F— 8

A 5% ) 2y BT AE i 2 BB A A L
2, KRG MG H N IER 2 &3
A RE B2 AL BT 1 SR A o BBUER B 43 AT 1
1145 DLAN s 5 BB 2 RAE R B
JH H DA K b ol die /s &) ] AL 6
SIf e A1 BEE 2R 1 5% A Bl ) 5% 45 TE
B i A7 &5 4 A7 40 5 FR 7 R R -
3R 2 IE #3R R is Jn 58 95 ot S A
B 41 W T 5% IFF 22 B B 1% s 18 Uk
Do Wb I0 B 35 T S AH B A B2 A 5%
R EL 3 R B AR s 18519 A S A T AR

258 N R 2 HIEINAE B 5
Bl o
2017 2016
b CEZRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T
1,086 1,277

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent currency risk as the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate loan receivables and
fixed-rate obligations under finance leases (see notes
16 and 20 respectively for details).

(i1)

A AR > U B M A fE
B EE A B LR > R
S0 TR 4 oA Ty A DL g Sl AN T R4 A
HY JEL B -

T3 Ja e

R S = Nl
R i B R K (] S A 2R R A T T
EA FE AR R (B R RS 4
Al 2 B B 5516 5220)
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For the year ended 30 April 2017

WEZF—LENH =1 HIRERE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on interest-bearing financial
assets and financial liabilities, which are mainly
balances with banks which are short term in nature,
and bank borrowings which carry interests at the
USD trade finance rate minus a margin. It is the
Group’s policy to keep its bank borrowings at
variable rate of interests so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk on interest bearing
bank deposits, are not significant as the bank
deposits are within short maturity periods and no
material fluctuations on interest rate are expected,
so no sensitivity analysis is presented regarding the
financial assets.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to variable interest rates for
variable rate bearing bank borrowings at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 basis points (2016: 100 basis
points) represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in variable rate bearing
bank borrowings.

27. &WITH (/)
S8 5 ol 4 L H B B BOSR (A)

i 455 JE B ()
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27.

For the year ended 30 April 2017

BEZF—LENA =+ L

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the interest rates had been 100 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year
ended 30 April 2017 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$332,000 (2016: HK$372,000).

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its financial assets at FVTPL. The Group’s financial
assets at FVTPL have significant concentration of
price risk in the Hong Kong stock market. All of
these investments are equity securities listed in the
Stock Exchange. Management manages the exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of equity investments of
the Group with different risk profiles.

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss for the year that would
arise assuming that the changes in the price of the
respective trading securities had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to equity price risk
at the end of the reporting period.

At 30 April 2017, if the price of the respective
equity instruments had been 30% (2016: 10%)
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant,
loss for the year ended 30 April 2017 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$62,101,000
(2016: HKS$7,032,000). The sensitivity rate adopted
by the management is increased to 30% in current
year as a result of the volatile equity market in
Hong Kong.

27. &WITH (/)
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #Z% —F— L4 A =+ H IL4FEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause financial loss to the Group due to failure of the
counterparties to discharge their obligations in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets arises from the
carrying value of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and loan receivables as set out
in notes 14 and 16. The amounts of trade receivables
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group is responsible for determination of credit limits
and credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
are carried out to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue receivables. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade and other
receivables at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The management will remind debtors for the
amount of outstanding receivables and the due dates of
settlement for the purpose to advise them settling the
outstanding balances promptly.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigns by
the international credit rating agencies.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk on
its trade receivables. At 30 April 2017, 19% (2016: 18%) of
trade receivables is due from the Group’s largest customer
and 38% (2016: 46%) of trade receivables is due from the
other four largest customers of the Group. Continuous
subsequent settlements are received and there is no
historical default of payments by these customers.

In order to minimise credit risk on loan receivables,
management request for collaterals in order to minimise
the exposure of credit risk due to the failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties. The collaterals held
under the GEO Loans are equity securities listed in Hong
Kong with an aggregate fair value of HK$99,190,000. In
addition, management reviews the recoverable amount of
each loan receivables at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable debts. In this regard, management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Other than the concentration of credit risks on bank
balances, trade receivables and loan receivables, the Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
be able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by cash or other financial assets.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management of the
Group is satisfied that the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as they full due
through monitoring internally generated funds, raising new
funds through placing of shares and monitoring closely on
the utilisation of bank and other borrowings.

The Group also relied on bank and other borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
and to arrange additional banking facilities, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. In
case of any breach of the loan covenants noted, the Group
would communicate with the respective bank to discuss
the possibility of revising the relevant loan covenants and
arranging for waiver of immediate repayment.

At 30 April 2017, the Group has available unutilised
overdrafts and short-term bank borrowing facilities of
HK$13,514,000 (2016: HKS$9,321,000). In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group does not
have extensive needs of funds in short run and is readily
accessible to additional facilities from reputable banks.
Details of the Group’s bank and other borrowings at
30 April 2017 and 2016 are set out in note 19.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. &@WTH ()
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT S 5, gt 4 PR H B B 8OO ()
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) B & 4 R BE (A1)
The following table details the Group’s remaining FRWINALHIEMESHMEEG S
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial NG DL o FRIIABIEALE H ] e E
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the SRAT R 2 B FH A 4% 4 Rl A A 2 R G B
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the B 4 I R 1 A Y e AR R R aR AT k4
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. Rl A e 5 A R REBE SR AT ELRER] > By
Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on demand ] i IR 2 R I K SRAT S B RE A R
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless FLIRF AR 2 A o HCAth I A A 4 A6 1Y
of the probability of the banks or financial institutions F 3 H DL e 2 5 3k H O R A
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.
The following table includes both interest and principal RS IR LB AR o A B
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating BV R AR R o R G SO T R
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate ot 3 P 45 PR RE 2 R SR AT A H o
at the end of the reporting period.
Liquidity and interest rate tables T B B R Fl A
Weighted Repayable Total
average on Less than 1to5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 1 year years cash flows amount
Tk AR R UGBB &
THAR  EREEE 1R 1E54 i IR T
% HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
% Tt T T T T
2017 “E-L
Non-derivative financial liabilities 474 4 il £ £
Trade and other payables B 5 I A A 08 nla A3 - 34,463 = 34,463 34,463
Accrued expenses JERT£ n/a A ¥ - 20,766 = 20,766 20,766
Bank borrowings - variable rate S 47 ff & — n[ B % 3.00 33,158 = = 33,158 33,158
Borrowing from a director —REREE - 75 - - 75 75
Obligations under finance leases il &l B /R ¥ 3.54 = 534 1,000 1,534 1,455
33,233 55,763 1,000 89,996 89,917
2016 ZE AR
Non-derivative financial liabilities  JE 7 A= 4 i £ £
Trade and other payables 2 5y B LA FE AT 7R n/a A - 32,585 - 32,585 32,585
Accrued expenses e A n/a A - 21,342 - 21,342 21,342
Bank borrowings — variable rate SRATIE & — A R 3.00 37,228 - - 37,228 37,228
Borrowing from a director —REEEE - 75 - - 75 75
Obligations under finance leases i & Al 15 R 4% 3.75 - 324 1,027 1,351 1,249
37,303 54,251 1,027 92,581 92,479

=1



132

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27.

Ao o B 5 A M

For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. &@WTH ()
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT Y 5 B 4 B B R SR ()
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) B & AR B ()
Liquidity and interest rate tables (continued) T ) B R Fl A (A
The amounts included above for variable interest rate R R AL B T AR M R TR AT AR
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are B - 2 AT R S I A R A T 45
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ TRIRE 18 08 2 Al R R R A B BN g
to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of 5 o
the reporting period.
The following table summarises the maturity analysis of I 2 MR A AR R K I R T R 2 o T
bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause B H O > BB mT B IRE 2 SR 1B 2R A B 1
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the SRATEEZ B 00 - AR SBE AR A
loan agreements. The amounts include interest payments A9 R S5O 2 R B AT R o B U - O S B
computed using contractual rates. As a result, these R A bt B A 4 AT T2 B SR IR 0 AR
amounts were greater than the amounts disclosed in the 165 [ A0 P 0 2 B o 7% i 3 A 4 A
“repayable on demand” time band in the maturity analysis SR —LFENA =+ HZ BRI AN
above. Taking into account the Group’s financial position A R A SRAT N AT (L I HE
as at 30 April 2017, the directors of the Company do not SR BV IRE 45 3K o AR N F] B R AHAT 5 SRATH
believe that it is probable that the bank will exercise its HSEARLAE A B R ol o TR AR H O
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The TEHRE B G ER - SIS E
directors of the Company believe that the bank borrowings
will be repaid after the reporting date in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements as follows:
Weighted Total
average Less than 1to2 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year years cash flows amount
Tk PR R
RE-LiES 1R 1224 bk % Y Tl 4L
% HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$000
Y% T T T T
2017 Y
Bank borrowings — variable AT B — B F % 3.0 33,364 = 33,364 33,158
2016 SRR
Bank borrowings — variable AT B — A A R 3.0 37,496 = 37,496 37,228
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF 28.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
liabilities.

(I)  FAIR VALUE OF THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL ASSET AND LIABILITY
THAT IS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
ON A RECURRING BASIS
The Group’s financial asset and financial liability
at FVTPL is measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair value of the
financial instrument is determined.

Fair value
VA i)
Financial instruments 2017 2016
& LR ZR—L RN
Financial asset at HK$217,542,0003 5t  HK$84,214,0003 7¢
FVTPL
— equity securities
listed in Hong
Kong
BN REF ARG Z
& Al
—nEE L2
&N
Financial asset at HK$30,366,000% 56 N/A
FVTPL A

— unlisted equity
securities in an
equity fund

A RERAEEZ
S EE
“REREEEZ

& bl A R 5

There was no transfer between instrument in Level 1
and 2 in both years.

ST HRZ A RME R

A% B 5k 16 A7 B A 45 0 T R D
B R 2 A S B o

(D

% RN R DL A RG22 AR
e e R R 2 A il

A e W 43 AU A B 2 e
R T A L AR 4% 92 0 T A6
R B H5 2 SRR o F AR
U4 B TR 2 26 o (AL O R G
Ko

Fair value Valuation techniques

hierarchy and key inputs

ARMEEHR SRR

Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an
B active market

TG B T35 ik 2 BAME
Level 2 Calculated based on
B quoted bid prices of

the equity securities listed
in Hong Kong as which
the fund invested

3 T2 TR EIS - P
BT RAE IR
E S UN

59— B Rz E A W R AR 8
I S5 2 2 T B RS

=3
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(IT) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES THAT
ARE NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
ON A RECURRING BASIS
The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted
cashflow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
approximate their respective fair values.

RETIREMENT AND PENSION SCHEMES

The Group currently participates in MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of the relevant payroll costs or capped at HK$1,500
(or higher percentage based on the choice of employees)
to the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of retirement benefits schemes operated by
the PRC government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries were
required to contribute certain percentages of the monthly
salaries of their current employees to fund the benefits. The
employees were entitled to retirement pension calculated
with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and
their length of service in accordance with the relevant
government regulations. The PRC government was

responsible for the pension liability to the retired staff.

Contributions to the above schemes for the year
ended 30 April 2017 made by the Group amounted to
HK$5,487,000 (2016: HK$6,727,000).
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #Z% —F— L4 A =+ H IL4FEE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

The 2015 Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”)

The Company’s Scheme was adopted pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed on 15 September 2015
(the “Adoption Date”), which has a terms of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date. The purpose of the
New Scheme is to provide the eligible participants (the
“Eligible Participants”) as defined in the Scheme with
the opportunity to acquire interests in the Company and
to encourage the Eligible Participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
The Board may grant options to the Eligible Participants,
including, but not limited to, (a) any employee (whether
full-time or part-time, including any executive directors but
excluding any non-executive director) of any member of
the Group or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds any equity interest (the “ Invested Entity”) and (b)
any non-executive directors of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity.

A share option granted by the Company is exercisable at
any time or times during the option period determined by
its directors. The Eligible Participants who accepted the
offer of the option (the “Guarantee™) are not required to
achieve any performance targets before any option granted
under the Scheme can be exercise. The date of the expiry of
the share option determine by the Board which shall not be
later than the 10th anniversary of the commencement date
in respect of such share option. The option acceptance date
should not be later than 28 days after the date of offer. The
exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the New Scheme shall be determined
by the Board but shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price per
share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; or (iii) the average closing price per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options.
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME (continued)

The 2015 Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) (continued)
The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed
such number of shares as required under the Listing
Rules, being 10% of the shares in issue as Adoption Date,
excluding the shares which would have been issuable
pursuant to the options which have lapsed pursuant to the
Scheme.

During the year ended 30 April 2017, no share option
was granted under the Scheme. During the year ended
30 April 2016, an aggregate of 22,870,000 share options
were granted under the Scheme. As at 30 April 2017, the
outstanding 22,710,000 (2016: 22,870,000) share options
representing approximately 1.0% (2016: 1%) of the issued
share capital of the Company. However, the total maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue in such 12-month period up to and including the
proposed date of grant, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #Z% —F— L4 A =+ H IL4FEE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION

SCHEME (continued)

Movement during the year

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by the directors of the Company and
employees under the Scheme during both years:

30. DAty 2 Rept 2 Ak 5 (4)

JBE AR s S0 JBE A it 8 (#60)

ENZEE)

TR EEA L F E R B TR A A #

VETN Z AN ) B PR A T 46 TR 2 B )

Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise at Granted at Forfeited at
Option type Date of grant price 1 May 2015 (note a) 30 April 2016 (note b) 30 April 2017
R-Z—L4 KRB A4 O S ok
LH—H gl WMA=+H BE%  WAZ+H
T e 1 RMAE  ffEE I AT f (Hita) I A A7 B (Hfito) i A A7 B
HKS$
EPH
Directors 22 April 2016 0.62 - 21,500,000 21,500,000 - 21,500,000
HH ZE-AFNAZTZH
Employees 22 April 2016 0.62 - 1,370,000 1,370,000 (160,000) 1,210,000
lE& “E-AENAZTZH
- 22,870,000 22,870,000 (160,000) 22,710,000
Exercisable at the A B T 47
end of the year - 22,870,000 22,710,000
Weighted average JHEE34947 B

exercise price

HKS$0.62# 0  HKS0.62¢ 70 HKS0.62¥ 70  HKS$0.62% T

Notes:

(a) Shares options were granted on 22 April 2016.

(b) During the year ended 30 April 2017, 160,000 share
options were forfeited upon the resignation of employees

of the Group.

(a) AAFRFE—RFOH ~+H&Z
s i S

(b) R E - LENH =+ HIEFE
160,000 8 17 1) i H 8 18] A 4 91 1§ &
B AT T 2R 5

=7
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME (continued)

Under the Scheme, share options can be exercised at any
time from the date of acceptance. The Guarantees are not
required to achieve any performance targets before any
option granted under the Scheme can be exercise.

The fair value of share options granted during the year
ended 30 April 2016 amounted to approximately 8,158,000
were recognised as expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The
Company had used the Binomial Option Pricing Model to
value the share options granted.

The following major assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options granted on 22 April 2016:

71 34
£ i B 2 o BeE

Exercisable period

Closing share price at
grant date

(ERE i

TP (M ita)

HHRE R (Mitb)

3 Jo\ g F R (Mt it )

Exercise price

Expected volatility (note a)
Expected dividend yield (note b)
Risk-free interest rate (note c)

The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The fair value of share option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

Notes:

(a) The expected volatility was determined with reference to
the historical daily volatilities of the share prices of the
Company.

(b) The expected dividend yield was determined based on the
historical dividend yield payout of the Company.

(c) The risk-free interest rate was determined with reference to
the Hong Kong sovereign bond curve as of with the same
term to maturity.
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31.

For the year ended 30 April 2017

WEZF—LENH =1 HIRERE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31.

In the ordinary course of its business, the Group entered

into the following transactions with related parties:

(A)

(B)

At 30 April 2017 and 2016, interest-free loans were
obtained from Mr. Li, a director as disclosed in note
19.

BB 05 38 5

A £ H A H R SEHS R v B BRI O T oL
1225

(A) MF—LHFERZE—NRN

S AF
= H o R A S AR
AR EE 19 B iR ) -

COMPENSATION OF KEY (B) FHHEFHABZHM
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The remuneration of directors of the Company and AN E E S R A A B
other members of key management during the year AR N Z B 54T
were as follows:
2017 2016
“E L RN
HKS$’000 HK$’000
F# T T
Fees and salaries 4 1 3,689 3,199
Retirement benefit schemes HRARAE A 5 E A3
contributions 141 99
Equity-settled share-based JBE A %5 5 DL R Ay 70 HE it
payment expense ZAT B 3 = 7,670
3,830 10,968
The remuneration of directors of the Company and ANFER K EEEHAE 2
key management is determined by the remuneration G TIHBME B G2 E M AR
committee having regard to the performance of T T B B4 4% 1 A o

individuals and market trends.

=59
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For the year ended 30 April 2017

WE-F—LENA=TA LR

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

32. EEWE A AN

The following are the particulars regarding the Company’s
subsidiaries at 30 April 2017 and 2016 which principally
affect the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that a full
list of all the subsidiaries will be of excessive length.
These subsidiaries operate principally in the place of
establishment/incorporation unless otherwise indicated.

Place of
establishment/
Name of subsidiary incorporation Principal activities
WA A1 POV AR L EL T
The Industrial Investment Cayman [slands ~ Investment holding
Company Limited ilE REER
QPL (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong [nvestment holding
A EEERAT i 18 -ged
QPL Limited (Note a) Hong Kong Manufacture and sale of
WEARAR (f7ta) i integrated circuit
leadframes, heatsinks,
stiffeners and
related products
SR E R BRI R
RO MR SR
QPL (US) Inc. The USA Distribution of integrated
FH circuit leadframes
and investment holding
MRS RE
Rtttk
REET (RY)ERAT  ThePRC Distribution of stamped
(Notec) (Hiit c) il leadframes and moulds
O EERE RER TH
Enma Holdings Limited British Virgin Island Securities trading
SRECRE  B5EA
Quality Capital Hong Kong Provision of financial
MEEARRAT i assistance and advance
PRARRRES B B R K

PIF AR - R _F—RNFMH
=T H EEE AL LS GRS A K
Z AN B A T B FEE o AR T E H
FR Ly B T A R R A T 22 4 B R T
o R A TR A AN > 5% 55 I S | R
HRGST 5 M A S b B 4 4

Proportion of nominal value of
registered capitalfissued share capital held by
registered capitall FEHRME A/ CRITIRAZ HHE
Issued share capital Company Subsidiary
CHEMEA/ LYY R 2+
S#RA

Paid up

017 2016 017 2016
“EE ZERAE CEtE ZZRE
% % % %

2,050 ordinary shares 24 244 97.56 97.56
of HKS! each

L0500 B (1
LEER

408,000,772 ordinary 100 100 - -
shares of
HK$0.04 cach
408,000,772/ & f;
T (0,048 0.2 5
2 ordinary shares of - - 100 100
HKS1 each and
1,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HKS1 each (Note b)
W R 1T
B4R 100085
[fieNbva 5t
BB (47t b)

150,603 ordinary shares 66.4 06.4 336 33.6
of no par value, paid
up to USD4,071,281

150,603 e B A
EERS4L01 815

USD3,000,000 - - 100 100
3,000,0005 1T

1 ordinary share of 100 100 - -
USDI each (Note d)

IREREEIET
LEER

1 ordinary share of 100 - - _
HKDI each (Note e)

IR R 1 e
LEER

(Hiztd)

(Wite)
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S

33.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:
(a)
(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Operating principally in the PRC.

The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, are
practically of no economic value.

The entity is a wholly foreign owned enterprises established
in the PRC.

The entity was incorporated during the year ended
30 April 2016.

The entity was incorporated during the year ended
30 April 2017.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
any time during both years or at the end of both years.

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

3%

33.

R0 AR S )

Wit :
(a) FF A B A o

(b) P A A [ R 2 A SE T O PR L
AT ] 465 75 1 {1

(c) W2 BB B N R B S 2 AR R A2 -
(d) ZEEAERE-F - ANFMNHA =1H
1 4F B R o

(e) ZEHMREBE X - EHENA=1H
114 JEE S ST o

P T A1 A JBE 79 AT e B[] 8028 22 T 8 4F B2
ZAE R WA I 2 R B AT AL A B
t

AR 2 i 8 5 R BB 2

A BR A2 F R i 0 T A5 R R 2 BB IR
WERZEREE:

2017 2016
—E—bfE AR
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T o
Non-current assets I U B B
Investments in subsidiaries g AR 2 E 431 489
Current assets i B B e
Amount due from subsidiaries JRE Wiz A Jag 2 ) K I 415,973 188,136
Bank balances and cash SRATHS B LBl 4& 200,943 549,123
Other current assets S Ath, 95 B A - 1,536
616,916 738,795
Current liabilities i By £ £
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREASH B Jig A ) kI (2,295) (2,307)
Accrued expense JE 5T 2 (855) (3,415)
(3,150) (5,722)
Net current assets Wi B A E TE 613,766 733,073
614,197 733,562
Share capital (Note 21) A (ffEE21) 180,501 180,501
Share premium and reserves Fe A5 v 18 % feti 433,696 553,061

614,197 733,562
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #&E _F—-E4FMH =1 H L4

33.

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

33. A2 B R RHBERE (A

(continued)
MOVEMENT IN SHARE PREMIUM AND B A ik A0 B ik 45 5% )
RESERVES
Capital Share
Share  Contributed  redemption options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
bt 4 (R ToRG GARMGEE WRERR RitEH it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’0@ HK$’009
T T T T T T
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hiita) (Hiitb)
At 1 May 2015 RoE-RERA—H 147812 75878 12310 S R066) (44664)
Loss and total comprehensive A fﬁ&%ﬁ
expense for the year EREE - - - - (14,560) (14,560)
Recognition of equity-settled share R IRAL IR0t 45
based payments AL - S = 8,158 - 8,158
Issue of new ordinary share (note 21)  BE{THi S (ff221) 559,919 = = = - 559,919
Transaction costs attributable to BRI 2 RN 2 5 R
issue of new ordinary shares (11,043) - - - - (11,043)
Capital reduction (note 21) AR (H721) = 55,251 = = = 55,051
At 30 April 2016 RZF=AEMA =1 H 696,688 131,129 12,310 8,158 (295,224) 553,061
Loss and total comprehensive AEEERREE
expense for the year B A - - - - (119,308)  (119,308)
Forfeiture of share options B A - - - (57 - 57
At 30 April 2017 REZ—HEMA=1H 696,688 131,129 12,310 8,101 (414,532) 433,696
Notes: Mt -
(a) Contributed surplus at 1 May 2015 represents the excess (a) AZE—HAERH—H2Z BRI
of the net assets of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal JIT VA i T R A R VSR A AR A
value of the Company’s shares issued as consideration. AR £ AR A T AT 22 i 0 T (L A 35 49
On 29 February 2016, immediately after the share AR NFEZHZ+HILH - BEEH
consolidation as disclosed in note 21(ii), the par value FE21(iH) BT 9% 58 2 I & D 4% > 3 2 i
of the ordinary shares of HKS$0.32 each is reduced to B TH (A 2 M GESH AR A (iR A
HKS$0.08 each by cancelling the paid-up capital to the P B3 5 850.24%5 00) 1 A5 20.32%5 o0
extent of HK$0.24 each of the consolidated shares. The Hll W8 2 49 15600895 oG » B B & #H JIREA
amount is credited to the contributed surplus. BB
(b) Capital redemption reserve represents the excess of the (b) A (] fe AR e B[] AR 2 ) 5 2 AR T

consideration paid for repurchase of the Company’s
ordinary shares over the par value of respective
repurchased shares.

ART X155 A A T 1 T £ T (L 2 8 4 o
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For the year ended 30 April 2017 #Z% —F— L4 A =+ H IL4FEE

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has the following events
subsequent to end of the reporting period:

DISPOSAL OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
After the end of the reporting period and up to the date
of these consolidated financial statements being approved
by the board of directors of the Company, the Group
has disposed of certain listed equity securities (which was
classified as financial assets at FVTPL as at 30 April 2017),
held by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, on
the open market and resulted in fair value loss on such
financial assets at FVTPL with an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$119,443,000 which will be charged to
the profit or loss of the Group for the year ending 30 April
2018.

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTIES

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 July 2017, Excellence Strive Holdings
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
incorporated after the year ended 30 April 2017, entered
into a provisional sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party, relating to the acquisition of two
office premises at a cash consideration of HK$111,008,000.
The transaction has not yet completed up to the date of
these consolidated financial statements being approved by
the board of directors of the Company.

34.

ik I 45 4% e A

o B U ) 7 B A1 - S A
0 4 B LR O

WA A G A Z S A
WA WA AE B H R % e I R R AR
AAFEREHEZ B REH D RA
BT 35 B AR N A & I A | R A
T EmEA#ES (R _F—L4FNUA
=t HEBEBEA REF AR Z SR
EEE) o B E AR A S E A A E R E
A 44 £5119,443,0008 7T > 5 51 AT 4E [
(2 R — \EMH =+ H ILFEMIR

3

N

Bl

| SURE S

A AR B A —F—LHELH
1 H B Z 45 i 3% #% > Excellence Strive
Holdings Limited (7% 4 /A & A # % —
F—LENA =+ H 1k FEE 2 & G ML
S 2 A G I N R LB ST A = Jr Bk DA
111,008,000k 7t £ Bl 45 1% 5 6 B i )& 5
FTHETRNEEH R AEZS 560
Wik FEER AW B AR R
56 B
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
S 75 1L 2

The financial summary of the Group for the past five financial — AS4E [ i 8k B £ %5 M (0 28 36 % 45 & B R 10
years, as extracted from the Group’s published audited %7 Fu i B B 4E B 2 B 5 M S a5 2
consolidated financial statements, are set out below:

TURNOVER AND (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE JBe SR I 4 4F B 2% SR U % (s 1) e A
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
For the year ended 30 April
WENA=A4H L4 E
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
SE - ZE-NE ZF-RFE ZZ-AFE R4
HKS$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T#T TH#T T T# T T# T

Turnover BEHE 217,180 262,714 262,203 287,021 280,719
(Loss) profit before taxation FrBLAT (BE1E ) i A (5,304) 2,699 (45,491) (1,054) (62,444)
Taxation (charge) credit BLIE (32 ) K5 (811) (1,044) (1,245) (9,937) 7,294
(Loss) profit for the year AR A JEE TR ME A
attributable to shareholders (K48 Jak A (6,115) 1,655 (46,736) (10,991) (55,150)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ K
At 30 April
RMA=+H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

SE-SF CE-NE SR SF-AE SRk
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
Tt T#E  TEE TEE T

Property, plant and equipment LESE S Y& 57,361 58,955 33,043 17,516 27,843
Available-for-sale investment Al 4,787 - - - -
Advance payment for acquisition M ) 3 B

of property, plant and equipment AR A 2 B 1,094 533 - - =
Financial asset at FVTPL HAREFTABRREZ

Sl E - - = 84,214 247,908
Bank balances and cash WATEER LB 4 8,683 9,600 4,686 641,668 322,761
Other current assets oAt ) B 71,932 110,043 85,756 108,136 186,828
Current liabilities T (63,576)  (103,954) (95,028) (93,135) (90,730)
80,281 75,177 28,457 758,399 694,610

Share capital A 61,390 61,390 61,390 180,501 180,501
Share premium and reserves B A0 Ve 10 . s fh 16,315 13,786 (32,934) 568,345 513,145
Shareholders’ fund & 71,705 75,176 28,456 748,846 693,646
Accrued expenses e F 2,575 - - - =
Deferred taxation RSB IH 1 1 1 8,586 =
Obligations under finance leases il L5 R A - = = 967 964

80,281 15,171 28,457 758,399 694,610




8/F., Hale Weal Industrial Building
22-28 Tai Chung Road
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
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